Public Document Pack

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on
Wednesday, 22nd June, 2016 at 7.00 pm

To:
VOTING MEMBERS

Clir B.A. Thomas (Chairman)
Clir J.H. Marsh (Vice-Chairman)

Clir Mrs. D.B. Bedford a ClIr R. Cooper CliIr Jennifer Evans
Clir D.M.T. Bell Clir P.1.C. Crerar Clir D.S. Gladstone
Clir ~ Sophia Choudharyllr Clir Sue Dibble Clir C.P. Grattan
R. Cooper Clir Jennifer Evans Clir A.R. Newell

NON-VOTING MEMBERS

Clir M.J. Tennant (Cabinet Member for Environment and Service Delivery) (ex-
officio)

STANDING DEPUTIES

Clir P.F. Rust

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to Lauren Harvey,
Democratic and Customer Services, 01252 398827 lauren.harvey@rushmoor.gov.uk




AGENDA
DECLARATION OF INTEREST -
All Members who believe they have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to
be considered at the meeting may not participate in any discussion or vote taken on
the matter and if the interest is not registered, it must be disclosed to the meeting. In
addition, Members are required to leave the meeting while the matter is discussed.

MINUTES - (Pages 1 - 124)

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 25th May, 2016 (copy attached).
Items for decision

PLANNING APPLICATIONS -

To consider the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1620 on planning applications

recently submitted to the Council (copy attached with a copy of the index appended

to the agenda).

APPOINTMENTS TO STANDING CONSULTATION GROUP -

To appoint the Chairman or Vice-Chairman and one representative from each of the
political groups to the Standing Consultation Group.

APPOINTMENTS TO DEVELOPMENT MONITORING GROUPS -

(1) Farnborough Town Centre —
To appoint the Chairman or Vice-Chairman and the three Empress
Ward Councillors to the Farnborough Town Centre Development Monitoring
Group set up by the Committee during the 2008/09 Municipal Year

(2) North Town — Aldershot —

To appoint the Chairman or Vice-Chairman and the three North Town Ward
Councillors to the North Town Development Monitoring Group.

(3) Wellesley — Aldershot Urban Extension —

To appoint the Chairman or Vice-Chairman and the three Wellington Ward
Councillors to the Wellesley Development Monitoring Group.

VARIATION OF LEGAL AGREEMENT RELATING TO FORMER TA CENTRE,
REDAN ROAD, ALDERSHOT -

To receive the Head of Planning’s Report No PLN1623 (copy attached) the purpose
of this report is to seek authority to vary the terms of the 2015 legal agreement.



MEETING REPRESENTATION

Members of the public may ask to speak at the meeting on any of the items on the
agenda by writing to the Panel Administrator at the Council Offices, Farnborough by

5.00 pm three working days prior to the meeting.

Applications for items to be considered for the next meeting must be received in
writing to the Panel Administrator fifteen working days prior to the meeting.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Meeting held on Wednesday, 25 May 2016 at the Concorde Room, Council
Offices, Farnborough at 7.00 pm.

Voting Members

Clir B.A. Thomas (Chairman)
Clir J.H. Marsh (Vice-Chairman)

Clir Mrs. D.B. Bedford Clir R. Cooper a ClIr Jennifer Evans
Clir D.M.T. Bell Clir P.1.C. Crerar Clir D.S. Gladstone
Clir Sophia Choudhary Clir Sue Dibble Clir C.P. Grattan

Non-Voting Members

Councillor Martin Tennant (ex-officio)

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Jennifer Evans.
DECLARATION OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 27th April, 2016 were approved and signed by the
Chairman.

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT, 1990 (AS AMENDED) - TOWN AND
COUNTRY PLANNING (GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PROCEDURE)
ORDER, 1995 - DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS GENERALLY

RESOLVED: That

(i) Permission be given to the following application set out in Appendix “A”
attached hereto, subject to the conditions, restrictions and prohibitions (if
any) mentioned therein:

16/00174/REVPP (Southwood Pavilion, Grasmere Road, Farnborough);
(i) the applications dealt with by the Head of Planning, where necessary in
consultation with the Chairman, in accordance with the Council’s Scheme

of Delegation, more particularly specified in Section “D” of the Head of
Planning’s Report No. PLN1618, be noted;

Pack Page 1



(iii)

(iv)

the following application be determined by the Head of Planning, in
consultation with the Chairman:

* 16/00263/FULPP (31 Reading Road, Farnborough);

the current position with regard to the following applications be noted
pending consideration at a future meeting:

15/00897/REMPP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital, Aldershot
Urban Extension, Alisons Road, Aldershot);

15/00898/REMPP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital, Aldershot
Urban Extension, Alisons Road, Aldershot);

15/00930/LBC2PP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital, Aldershot
Urban Extension, Alisons Road, Aldershot);

15/00931/LBC2PP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital, Aldershot
Urban Extension, Alisons Road, Aldershot); and

16/00027/FUL (Asda, Westmead, Farnborough);

16/00307/FULPP (The Potters Arms, 182 Cove Road, Farnborough); and

16/00331/FULPP (65 North Lane, Aldershot);

The Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1618 in respect of these
applications was amended at the meeting.

REPRESENTATIONS BY THE PUBLIC

In accordance with the guidelines for public participation at meetings, the following
representations were made to the committee and were duly considered before a

decision was reached:

Application No. Address Representation In support of or
against the
application

16/00174/REVPP  (Southwood Mr. A. Jones Against

Pavilion,
Grasmere Road,
Farnborough)
16/00263/FULPP (31 Reading Mr. M. Haxeltine Against
Road,
Farnborough)

APPLICATION NO. 16/00263/FULPP - 31 READING ROAD, FARNBOROUGH

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1618 (as amended at

the meeting) regarding the erection of a terrace of four three-bedroom three-storey

Pack Page 2



dwelling houses and associated parking following the demolition of the existing
bungalow.

It was noted that the recommendation was to grant planning permission, subject to the
completion of a satisfactory planning obligation under Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act, 1990.

RESOLVED: That

(i subject to the completion of a satisfactory Agreement under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, by 20th June, 2016, to
secure appropriate financial contributions towards transport and SPA
mitigation, the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman, be
authorised to grant planning permission, subject to the amended
conditions and informatives set out in the Head of Planning’s Report No.
PLN1618; however

(i) in the event that a satisfactory Section 106 Agreement is not received by
20th June, 2016, the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman,
be authorised to refuse planning permission on the grounds that the
proposal does not make satisfactory provision for transport contributions in
accordance with the Council’s adopted ‘Transport Contributions’ SPD and
Core Strategy Policies CP10, CP16 and CP17; and financial contribution
to mitigate the effect of the development on the Thames Basin Heaths
Special Protection Area in accordance with the Rushmoor Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy
Policies CP11 and CP13.

RUSHMOOR LOCAL ENFORCEMENT PLAN

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1617 which included a
copy of the draft Local Enforcement Plan. It was noted that Government advice in the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF para. 207) was that Councils should make a
clear statement of their approach and commitment to the enforcement of planning
control in a Local Enforcement Plan. This should provide a firm decision-making
framework for effective enforcement procedures to be put in place.

RESOLVED: That the draft Local Enforcement Plan be referred to the Cabinet for
adoption and publication.

APPEALS PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1619 concerning the
following appeal decisions:

Application No. Description Decision

Pack Page 3



14/00706/FULPP

Against the Council’s decision to refuse Allowed
planning permission in January, 2015. The
Hearing commenced on 9th December, 2015
and was adjourned to resume on 25th
February, 2016, to allow time for the
appellants to discuss possible solutions to
overcome the highways objections to the
scheme with Hampshire Highways
Development Planning. The Inspector
assessed the ‘Option E’ proposals and
considered the scheme to be much preferred
and acceptable.

Application for costs was made by the Council No Costs
at the Hearing in the basis that the Council Award
had incurred unnecessary expense in

responding to and preparing for the appeal.

The Inspector considered that there had been

no unreasonable behaviour and the appellants

were entitled to pursue alternative proposals.

RESOLVED: That the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1619 be noted.

The meeting closed at 7.42 pm.

Pack Page 4

CLLR G.B. LYON
CHAIRMAN



RUSHMOOR BOROUGH
COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 22nd June, 2016
at 7.00 p.m.

To:

VOTING MEMBERS

Cr. B.A. Thomas (Chairman)
Cr. J.H. Marsh (Vice-Chairman)

Cr. D.B. Bedford Cr. P.I.C. Crerar Cr. D.S. Gladstone
Cr. D.M.T. Bell Cr. Sue Dibble Cr. C.P. Grattan
Cr. R. Cooper Cr. Jennifer Evans Cr. A.R. Newell

NON-VOTING MEMBER

Cr. M.J. Tennant - Cabinet Member for Environment and Service Delivery
(ex officio)

STANDING DEPUTIES

Cr. S.J. Masterson
Cr. P.F. Rust
Pack Page 5




Pack Page 6



Council Offices, Farnborough Road,
Farnborough, Hants. GU14 7JU
Tel: (01252) 398 399

Website: www.rushmoor.gov.uk

Mr. Chairman, Ladies and Gentlemen,

You are hereby summoned to a Meeting of the Development
Management Committee which will be held in the Concorde Room at the
Council Offices, Farnborough on Wednesday, 22nd June, 2016 at 7.00 p.m. for
the transaction of the business set out below.

Yours faithfully,

A.E. COLVER
Head of Democratic Services

Council Offices
Farnborough

14th June, 2016

Enquiries regarding this Agenda should be referred to Lauren Harvey,
Administrative Assistant, Democratic Services (Tel: (01252) 398827 or e-mail:
lauren.harvey@rushmoor.gov.uk)

A full copy of this agenda can be found at the following website:
http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/8923

Agenda
1. Declarations of interest —

All Members who believe they have a disclosable pecuniary interest
in any matter to be considered at the meeting may not participate in any
discussion or vote taken on the matter and if the interest is not registered,
it must be disclosed to the meeting. In addition, Members are required to
leave the meeting while the matter is discussed.

Pack Page 7


http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/8923

2. Minutes —

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 25th May, 2016
(copy attached).

Items for decision
3. Planning applications —
To consider the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1620 on
planning applications recently submitted to the Council (copy attached with
a copy of the index appended to the agenda).

4. Appointments to Standing Consultation Group —

To appoint the Chairman or Vice-Chairman and one representative
from each of the political groups to the Standing Consultation Group.

5. Appointments to Development Monitoring Groups —
(1) Farnborough Town Centre —
To appoint the Chairman or Vice-Chairman and the three Empress
Ward Councillors to the Farnborough Town Centre Development
Monitoring Group set up by the Committee during the 2008/09 Municipal
Year

(2)  North Town — Aldershot -

To appoint the Chairman or Vice-Chairman and the three North
Town Ward Councillors to the North Town Development Monitoring Group.

(3)  Wellesley — Aldershot Urban Extension —
To appoint the Chairman or Vice-Chairman and the three
Wellington Ward Councillors to the Wellesley Development Monitoring

Group.

6. Variation of Legal Agreement Relating to Former TA Centre, Redan
Road, Aldershot

To receive the Head of Planning’s Report No PLN1623 (copy

attached) the purpose of this report is to seek authority to vary the terms of
the 2015 legal agreement.

Pack Page 8



Item
No.

1

10

11

Index to Development Management Committee Agenda

Reference
Number

15/00897/REMPP

15/00898/REMPP

15/00930/LBC2PP

15/00931/LBC2PP

16/00408/ADVPP

16/00409/ADVPP

16/00410/ADVPP

16/00411/FULPP

16/00027/FUL

16/00307/FULPP

16/00331/FULPP

22nd June 2016
Report No. PLN1620

Address

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital
Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons
Road Aldershot

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital
Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons
Road Aldershot

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital
Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons
Road Aldershot

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital
Aldershot Urban Extension Alisons
Road Aldershot

225 Ash Road Aldershot

225 Ash Road Aldershot

225 Ash Road Aldershot

225 Ash Road Aldershot

ASDA Westmead Farnborough

The Potters Arms 182 Cove Road
Farnborough

65 North Lane Aldershot

Recommendation  Page No.
For Information 15
For Information 15
For Information 16
For Information 16
For Information 16
For Information 16
For Information 16
For Information 17

Grant 18

Grant 29

Grant 54
Pack Page 9



12 16/00208/FULPP 32 The Crescent Farnborough

13 16/00456/RBCRG3 Queens Gate Roundabout
Farnborough

Pack Page 10

Grant

Grant

77

86



Development Management Committee

22nd June 2016

Name: Clir

Declarations of interest

Agenda item 1

Head of Planning

N.B. A declaration is not required for items that appear either in Section D of the
Planning Report or the Appeals Progress Report as such items are for noting only.

Agenda
Item No.

Planning
Application No.

Application
Address

Reason

Pack Page 11




Pack Page 12



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

Meeting held on Wednesday, 25th May, 2016 at the Council Offices,
Farnborough at 7.00 p.m.

Voting Members
Cr. B.A. Thomas (Chairman)
Cr. J.H. Marsh (Vice-Chairman)

Cr. Mrs. D.B. Bedford Cr. P.I1.C. Crerar Cr. D.S. Gladstone
Cr. D.M.T. Bell Cr. Sue Dibble Cr. C.P. Grattan
Cr. R. Cooper a Cr. Jennifer Evans Cr. A.R. Newell

Non-Voting Member

Cr. M.J. Tennant (Cabinet Member for Environment and Service
Delivery) (ex officio)

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Cr. Jennifer Evans.
DECLARATION OF INTEREST —

There were no declarations of interest.
MINUTES —

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 27th April, 2016 were approved
and signed by the Chairman.

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT, 1990 (AS AMENDED) -

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (GENERAL DEVELOPMENT
PROCEDURE) ORDER, 1995 -

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS GENERALLY —

RESOLVED: That
(i) Permission be given to the following application set out in
Appendix “A” attached hereto, subject to the conditions,

restrictions and prohibitions (if any) mentioned therein:

16/00174/REVPP (Southwood Pavilion, Grasmere Road,
Farnborough);

(i) the applications dealt with by the Head of Planning, where
necessary in consultation with the Chairman, in accordance with

Pack Page 13



*

the Council’s Scheme of Delegation, more particularly specified
in Section “D” of the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1618,
be noted;

the following application be determined by the Head of Planning,
in consultation with the Chairman:

16/00263/FULPP (31 Reading Road, Farnborough);

the current position with regard to the following applications be
noted pending consideration at a future meeting:

15/00897/REMPP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons
Road, Aldershot);

15/00898/REMPP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons
Road, Aldershot);

15/00930/LBC2PP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons
Road, Aldershot);

15/00931/LBC2PP (Zone C — Cambridge Military Hospital,
Aldershot Urban Extension, Alisons
Road, Aldershot); and

16/00027/FUL (Asda, Westmead, Farnborough);

16/00307/FULPP (The Potters Arms, 182 Cove Road,
Farnborough); and

16/00331/FULPP (65 North Lane, Aldershot);

The Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1618 in respect of these
applications was amended at the meeting.

4. REPRESENTATIONS BY THE PUBLIC —

In accordance with the guidelines for public participation at meetings,
the following representations were made to the committee and were duly
considered before a decision was reached:

Application No. Address Representation In support of
or against the
application

16/00174/REVPP  (Southwood Mr. A. Jones Against

Pavilion, Grasmere
Road,
Farnborough)

16/00263/FULPP (31 Reading Road, Mr. M. Haxeltine Against

Pack Page 14

Farnborough)



5. APPLICATION NO. 16/00263/FULPP - 31 READING ROAD,
FARNBOROUGH —

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1618
(as amended at the meeting) regarding the erection of a terrace of four three-
bedroom three-storey dwelling houses and associated parking following the
demolition of the existing bungalow.

It was noted that the recommendation was to grant planning
permission, subject to the completion of a satisfactory planning obligation
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990.

RESOLVED: That

(i) subject to the completion of a satisfactory Agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, by
20th June, 2016, to secure appropriate financial contributions
towards transport and SPA mitigation, the Head of Planning, in
consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to grant planning
permission, subject to the amended conditions and informatives
set out in the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1618; however

(i)  in the event that a satisfactory Section 106 Agreement is not
received by 20th June, 2016, the Head of Planning, in
consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to refuse planning
permission on the grounds that the proposal does not make
satisfactory provision for transport contributions in accordance
with the Council’s adopted ‘Transport Contributions’ SPD and
Core Strategy Policies CP10, CP16 and CP17; and financial
contribution to mitigate the effect of the development on the
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area in accordance
with the Rushmoor Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area Interim Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy Policies CP11
and CP13.

6. RUSHMOOR LOCAL ENFORCEMENT PLAN —

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1617
which included a copy of the draft Local Enforcement Plan. It was noted that
Government advice in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF para.
207) was that Councils should make a clear statement of their approach
and commitment to the enforcement of planning control in a Local
Enforcement Plan. This should provide a firm decision-making framework
for effective enforcement procedures to be put in place.

RESOLVED: That the draft Local Enforcement Plan be referred to the
Cabinet for adoption and publication.

Pack Page 15



7. APPEALS PROGRESS REPORT -

The Committee received the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1619
concerning the following appeal decisions:

Application No.

14/00706/FULPP

Description

Against the Council’s decision to refuse
planning permission in January, 2015.
The Hearing commenced on 9th
December, 2015 and was adjourned to
resume on 25th February, 2016, to allow
time for the appellants to discuss
possible solutions to overcome the
highways objections to the scheme with
Hampshire = Highways  Development
Planning. The Inspector assessed the
‘Option E’ proposals and considered the
scheme to be much preferred and
acceptable.

Application for costs was made by the
Council at the Hearing in the basis that
the Council had incurred unnecessary
expense in responding to and preparing
for the appeal. The Inspector considered
that there had been no unreasonable
behaviour and the appellants were
entitled to pursue alternative proposals.

Decision

Allowed

No Costs
Award

RESOLVED: That the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1619 be

noted.

The Meeting closed at 7.42 p.m.

Pack Page 16

G.B.LYON
CHAIRMAN



Development Management Committee
25th May 2016

Appendix “A”

Application No.  16/00174/REVPP 3rd March 2016

& Date Valid:

Proposal: Variation of Condition No.7 of Planning Permission
06/00133/RBCRG3 dated 27th April 2006 to allow the hours of
use of the Pavilion to be extended from 08.00 - 22.00 to 08.00 -
23.00 hours on a permanent basis with the option to use the
TEN (Licencing Act Temporary Event Notice) process to allow
later hours of use for a maximum of 15 events per calendar year
at Southwood Pavilion Grasmere Road Farnborough
Hampshire

Applicant: Mr Mike Fitzpatrick

Conditions: 1 The building shall not be used outside the hours of 0800

to 2300 hours unless in connection with Temporary Event
Notice entertainment events to the extent defined by
Condition No.3 of this permission.

Reason - In the interests of the amenities of nearby
residents.

2 A Duty Officer (to be provided by the applicants) shall be
present at the site for the duration of all of the evening
events to be run at the Pavilion beyond 2200 hours as a
result of this permission in order to monitor the conduct of
the event and continued compliance with the terms of all
operative planning conditions; and to take the
appropriate corrective action should any problems arise.

Reason - In the interests of the amenities of nearby
residential properties.

3 Temporary Event Notice (TEN) events (as defined and
regulated under the Licencing Act 2003) shall take place
on no more than 15 occasions in a calendar year.
Notwithstanding the formal submission of TEN
applications to the Local Licencing Authority, the Local
Planning Authority shall be notified in writing at least 14
days before any TEN event to be run at the Pavilion with
a Licencing Temporary Event Notice is due to take place
to advise of the date and times for the event; and the
name and mobile telephone contact details of the duty

Pack Page 17
10



Pack Page 18

officer to be present at the event.

Reason - In the interests of the amenities of occupiers of
nearby residential properties; and in order that the Local
Planning Authority can monitor compliance with the
terms of this condition.

The rear and side windows and shutters of the Pavilion
function room shall be closed at all times after 2200 hours
during any later evening events being run as a result of
this permission.

Reason - In the interests of the amenities of nearby
residential properties.

Notices shall be displayed at the Pavilion and around the
adjoining car park to remind persons attending any event
or otherwise visiting the Pavilion to have respect for the
peace and quiet of the residential neighbours; and that
drivers of vehicles using the car park should switch their
engines off whilst parked or stationary.

Reason - In the interests of the amenities of nearby
residential properties.

11



Agenda Item 3

Development Management Committee Head of Planning
22nd June 2016 Report No.PLN1620

Planning Applications
1. Introduction

1.1 This report considers recent planning applications submitted to the Council,
as the Local Planning Authority, for determination.

2. Sections In The Report
2.1 The report is divided into a number of sections:
Section A - FUTURE Items for Committee — Pages 15 to 17

Applications that have either been submitted some time ago but are still not
ready for consideration or are recently received applications that have been
received too early to be considered by Committee. The background papers
for all the applications are the application details contained in the Part 1
Planning Register.

Section B — For the NOTING of any Petitions — Page 17
Section C - Items for DETERMINATION — Pages 18 to 91

These applications are on the Agenda for a decision to be made. Each item
contains a full description of the proposed development, details of the
consultations undertaken and a summary of the responses received, an
assessment of the proposal against current policy, a commentary and
concludes with a recommendation. A short presentation with slides will be
made to Committee.

Section D — Applications ALREADY DETERMINED under the Council’s
adopted scheme of Delegation — Pages 92 to 114

This lists planning applications that have already been determined by the
Head of Planning, and where necessary with the Chairman, under the
Scheme of Delegation that was approved by the Development Management
Committee on 17 November 2004. These applications are not for decision
and are FOR INFORMATION only.

2.2  All information, advice and recommendations contained in this report are
understood to be correct at the time of publication. Any change in
circumstances will be verbally updated at the Committee meeting. Where a
recommendation is either altered or substantially amended between preparing
the report and the Committee meeting, a separate sheet will be circulated at
the meeting to assist Members in following the modifications proposed. This
sheet will be available to members of the public.

Pack Page 19
12



3. Planning Policy

3.1 Section 38(6) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (As amended)
requires regard to be had to the provisions of the development plan in the
determination of planning applications. This comprises the Rushmoor Plan
Core Strategy (October 2011), the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan
adopted October 2013, saved policies of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review
(1996-2011) and saved policy NRM6 of the South East Plan.

3.2  Although not necessarily specifically referred to in the Committee report, the
relevant development plan will have been used as a background document
and the relevant policies taken into account in the preparation of the report on
each item. Where a development does not accord with the development plan
and it is proposed to recommend that planning permission be granted, the
application will be advertised as a departure and this will be highlighted in the
Committee report.

4. Human Rights

4.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 (the Act) has incorporated part of the European
Convention on Human Rights into English law. All planning applications are
assessed to make sure that the subsequent determination of the development
proposal is compatible with the Act. If there is a potential conflict, this will be
highlighted in the report on the relevant item.

5. Public Speaking

5.1  The Committee has agreed a scheme for the public to speak on cases due to
be determined at the meeting (Planning Services report PLNO327 refers).
Members of the public wishing to speak must have contacted the Meeting Co-
ordinator in Democratic Services by 5pm on the Tuesday immediately
preceding the Committee meeting. It is not possible to arrange to speak to
the Committee at the Committee meeting itself.

6. Late Representations

6.1  The Council has adopted the following procedures with respect to the receipt
of late representations on planning applications (Planning report PLN 0113
refers):

a) All properly made representations received before the expiry of the final
closing date for comment will be summarised in the Committee report. Where
such representations are received after the agenda has been published, the
receipt of such representations will be reported orally and the contents
summarised on the amendment sheet that is circulated at the Committee
meeting. Where the final closing date for comment falls after the date of the
Committee meeting, this will be highlighted in the report and the
recommendation caveated accordingly.

Pack Page 20
13



b) Representations from both applicants and others made after the expiry of the
final closing date for comment and received after the report has been
published will not be accepted unless they raise a new material consideration
which has not been taken into account in the preparation of the report or
draws attention to an error in the report.

c) Representations that are sent to Members should not accepted or allowed to
influence Members in the determination of any planning application unless
those representations have first been submitted to the Council in the proper
manner (but see (b) above).

d) Copies of individual representations will not be circulated to members but
where the requisite number of copies are provided, copies of individual
representation will be placed in Members’ pigeonholes.

e) All letters of representation will be made readily available in the Committee
room an hour before the Committee meeting.

7. Financial Implications

7.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. However, in
the event of an appeal, further resources will be put towards defending the
Council’'s decision. Rarely, and in certain circumstances, decisions on
planning applications may result in the Council facing an application for costs
arising from a planning appeal. Officers will aim to alert Members where this
may be likely and provide appropriate advice in such circumstances.

Keith Holland
Head of Planning

Background Papers

- The individual planning application file (reference no. quoted in each case)

- Rushmoor Core Strategy (2011)

- Rushmoor Local Plan Review (1996-2011)[Saved policies]

- Current government advice and guidance contained in circulars, ministerial
statements and the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

- Any other document specifically referred to in the report.

- Regional Spatial Strategy for the South East, policy NRM6: Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Area.

- The National Planning Policy Framework.

- Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (2013).

Pack Page 21
14



Pack

Development Management Committee

22nd June 2016

Section A items are for INFORMATION purposes only.

Report No. PLN1620

Section A

Future items for Committee

It comprises applications that

have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for consideration or
are recently received applications that are not ready to be considered by the
Committee. The background papers for all the applications are the application details
contained in the Part 1 Planning Register.

Item

Reference

Description and address

1

15/00897/REMPP

PART APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS: for
the conversion of the Cambridge Military Hospital
(including part demolition, extensions and external
alterations) to provide 74 dwellings (Use Class C3)
and 943m2 of mixed commercial and community
uses (Use Classes A3, B1, D1 and D2); with
associated landscaping, access and parking, in
Development Zone C (Cambridge Military Hospital),
pursuant to Condition 4 (1 to 21), attached to Outline
Planning Permission 12/00958/OUT dated 10th
March 2014.

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital Aldershot
Urban Extension Alisons Road Aldershot

Amendments to the proposal are under discussion.

Page

15/00898/REMPP

22

PART APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS: for
the redevelopment of the Louise Margaret Hospital
and Nurses Residence (including part demolition,
external alterations, extensions and new build) to
provide 42 dwellings (Use Class C3) with associated
landscaping, access and parking, in Development
Zone C (Cambridge Military Hospital), pursuant to
Condition 4 (1 to 21), attached to Outline Planning
Permission 12/00958/OUT dated 10th March 2014.

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital Aldershot
Urban Extension Alisons Road Aldershot

Amendments to the proposal are under discussion.

15




15/00930/LBC2PP LISTED BUILDING CONSENT: for internal and
external alterations, including part demolition, to
facilitate the conversion of the Cambridge Military
Hospital to provide 74 dwellings and 943m2 of mixed
commercial and community uses in Development
Zone C (Cambridge Military Hospital).(PLEASE SEE
APPLICATION REFERENCE 15/00897/REMPP
FOR DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTS)

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital Aldershot
Urban Extension Alisons Road Aldershot

Amendments to the proposal are under discussion.

15/00931/LBC2PP LISTED BUILDING CONSENT: for internal and
external alterations, including part demolition, to
facilitate the redevelopment of the Louise Margaret
Hospital and Nurses Residence site to provide 42
dwellings, in Development Zone C (Cambridge
Military Hospital). (PLEASE SEE APPLICATION
REFERENCE 15/00898/REMPP FOR DRAWINGS
AND DOCUMENTS)

Zone C - Cambridge Military Hospital Aldershot
Urban Extension Alisons Road Aldershot

Amendments to the proposal are under discussion.

16/00408/ADVPP Display three sets of internally illuminated letters,
three internally illuminated fascia signs and one
internally illuminated golden arch

225 Ash Road Aldershot

This application has only recently been received and
consultations are underway.

16/00409/ADVPP Display a double sided internally illuminated totem
sign (6.5 metres high)

225 Ash Road Aldershot

This application has only recently been received and
consultations are underway.

16/00410/ADVPP Display one internally illuminated Gateway (height
restrictor) sign, nine freestanding internally
illuminated signs, one freestanding non illuminated
sign, twenty non illuminated traffic signs dhdciiéage 23

16



non illuminated double sided banner units.

225 Ash Road Aldershot

This application has only recently been received and
consultations are underway.

8 16/00411/FULPP Erection of restaurant with drive-thru and takeaway
facility (Use Class A3 / A5) with associated
structures, fencing, parking, landscaping and
vehicular access from North Close (following
demolition of existing buildings and closure of access
onto North Lane)

225 Ash Road Aldershot
This application has only recently been received and
consultations are underway.
Section B
Petitions
Item | Reference Description and address
1 16/00359/FUL Erection of one wooden shed, one metal storage

shed (tool store), one greenhouse and one composting
toilet, to facilitate use of land as community garden

Part Of Former Garage Site, Prince Charles
Crescent, Farnborough

A petition has been received containing the signatures
of 12 residents who support the formation of “Hawley
Community Garden” on part of this disused garage
area. The application, which related only to the
ancillary buildings rather than the use of the site itself,
has been granted under delegated powers.

Recommendation: Petition be NOTED.

Pack Page 24

17




Development Management Committee Item 9
22nd June 2016 Report No.PLN1620
Section C

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the
date of preparation, which is more than two weeks in advance of the Committee meeting.
Because of these time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the
final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comment. Any changes or necessary
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

Case Officer Chris Jones
Application No. 16/00027/FUL
Date Valid 6th January 2016
Expiry date of 12th May 2016

consultations

Proposal Construction of a 'Home Shopping' link canopy and van loading
canopy with 3m high fence and other associated works.

Address ASDA Westmead Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7LT
Ward Empress

Applicant ASDA Stores Ltd

Agent Miss Ellen Sanderson - Deloitte LLP

Recommendation GRANT

Description

This proposal relates to the rear of the Asda store which faces onto Westmead. At present
the building has two goods entrances, a main service yard at the south-eastern corner of the
building and a second at the north-eastern corner, from where its home delivery service is
operated. The proposal relates to the area of land between the rear elevation of the building
and Westmead, which comprises part of a hard-surfaced parking area and a grassed area
with a number of semi-mature trees on it.

The proposal is to extend the hard surface to create a loading area for four home delivery
vehicles beneath a canopy. A covered way would link the main canopy to an existing door in
the rear elevation of the building. Some existing condenser units in a cage would be
relocated to make way for this. Amended plans show a 3m high timber acoustic fence
alongside the main canopy and link. It would be necessary to remove seven trees from the
area to undertake this development. The canopy of a Scots Pine over an existing car parking
area would be cut back and the area used to park four other home delivery vehicles.

Planning permission 04/00127/FUL was granted in 2004 for external alterations to the
building to facilitate the creation of a home shopping area. However, this was not
implemented.

Pack Page 25
18



Consultee Responses

Transportation Strategy Officer No objection to amended plans.

Environmental Health No objection to amended plans, subject to conditions.
Neighbours notified

In addition to posting a site notice and press advertisement, 43 individual letters of
notification were sent to commercial and residential properties in Queensmead, Westmead
and Dukes Court.

Neighbour comments

The occupants of 94 Westmead have raised concerns that the proposal would move activity
closer to residential properties, which would increase noise and disturbance to residents, and
that the open sided canopy would provide little protection against noise. They raise concerns
that the area could be used for vehicle repairs, maintenance and vehicle washing, activities
which have previously occurred on this site and given rise to complaint. They consider that
home delivery operations should only be run from stores where specifically designed facilities
have been provided and that the present site is unsuitable for such an operation. They
express concern that no information has been given in the application about the proposed
hours of use for the facility. They note that customer information on the ASDA home delivery
website states that the delivery time slots are from 06.00 until 23.00, 7 days a week to the
customer’s door, which would mean that vehicles would leave and return to the store at times
when vehicles are otherwise prevented from making deliveries the store. They note that they
have witnessed home delivery vehicles making such deliveries, which have resulted in noise
and disturbance to residents, and therefore suggested that the use of the home delivery area
should be restricted by planning condition to the same hours as deliveries are permitted in
the main service yard, thatis 0700 and 2200 Monday to Saturday and not at all on Sundays
or Bank Holidays.

Writing in respect of the amended plans, the occupants of 94 Westmead have expressed
disappointment that the applicant has chosen to address the issue of noise arising from
activity beneath the canopy by means of an acoustic fence rather than providing an enclosed
brick-built structure. They also note that the fence would provide little protection for their
property as the open end of the canopy would face in this direction. They have no objection
to the use of the existing parking area to provide parking for the additional home delivery
vans as shown on the amended plans, provided that this area is not used for the servicing
and maintenance of vehicles.

Policy and determining issues

The site is within Farnborough Town Centre area and within the shopping core as designated
by the Rushmoor Core Strategy and policies SP4 (Farnborough town centre) CP1
(sustainable development principles), CP2 (Design and Heritage) and CP16 (Reducing and
managing Travel Demand) and saved policies TC1 (town centre developments), ENV17
(general development criteria) and ENV48 (environmental pollution and noise) of the
Rushmoor Local Plan Review are relevant. The Farnborough Town Centre SPD is also
relevant.

Pack Page 26
19



The main determining issues are considered to be the principle of the development, impact
upon visual amenity (including impact upon trees), impact upon residential amenity and
impact upon highway safety.

Commentary
Principle -

The applicants’ Home Delivery Service has operated from the premises for a number of
years and is a lawful part of their business. Whilst internal alterations have been made to the
building to facilitate this, no external changes have been made and vehicles are loaded and
unloaded from the yard to the north of the building or from the lorry parking bays on
Westmead, where the vehicles are parked when not in use. Both of these areas fall within
the public highway where parking and loading of vehicles is both lawful and outside the
scope of planning control. It is considered that any proposal to provide dedicated facilities to
handle the loading and unloading and parking of delivery vehicles off the highway is
acceptable, provided that harm to visual amenity, residential amenity or highway safety does
not result.

Impact upon Visual Amenity -

The land on which the structures would be erected is a grassed area alongside a service
road which derives its amenity value mainly from the presence of a number of semi-mature
Silver Birch, Rowan and Liquid Amber trees. It is used extensively for the irregular parking of
staff cars resulting in patches of bare ground and an unkempt appearance. The proposed
structures would be utilitarian in appearance but would not be inappropriate to their
surroundings. Whilst trees would be removed to facilitate the proposal, the Arboricultural
Officer considers that these trees, which appear to be part of the original landscaping of the
development, have outgrown their location and the impact could be offset by appropriate
planting, including replacement trees on the remaining grassed areas adjacent to the
canopy, together with some form of barrier alongside the edge of the highway to prevent its
use for parking.

Impact upon Residential Amenity -

The application as originally submitted was for an open-sided canopy without any form of
fencing. The Head of Environmental Health and Housing has commented that the application
as proposed brings loading operations slightly closer to the residential properties above
Queensmead whose rear facades overlook Westmead. It also moves the activity
approximately 25m further south along Westmead, increasing the number of residential
properties potentially exposed to these operations. The nature of how these vans are loaded
(staff manually lifting crates of groceries into the side of the vans) means that it should not
necessarily be a noisy activity in itself, however anecdotally, there have been reports that
empty crates are 'thrown' to the ground when the vans return to the store. Deliveries take
place between 6 am and 11pm, 7 days per week so there is potential for disturbance late at
night when vehicles return after their final delivery slots. There is no mention within the
submitted details over what controls are in place to minimise noise from this operation. It
should be noted however, that Environmental Health have not received formal complaints of
noise from this particular activity. Moving the loading area should not lead to a significant
increase in noise from this operation by comparison with the existing arrangement. Provided
goods are loaded onto the vans in an appropriate manner and empty crates removed with
due consideration, the operation itself should not necessarily be noisy and should not

Pack Page 27
20



adversely affect amenity. The proposed galvanised steel canopy will offer no protection from
noise emitted from the loading/unloading activities. The fitting of a side panel of suitable
construction would provide an element of shielding to those residential premises directly
opposite the application site and it is recommended that this is a measure that should be
considered by the applicant.

In response to these comments, the applicant submitted amended plans that show a 33m
length of acoustic fencing alongside the canopy and a linking canopy to reduce noise
emissions. No detailed specification is given for the acoustic fencing, but the Head of
Environment Health considers that this is a matter that can be dealt with by planning
condition. The objectors' comments that the acoustic fence would provide little protection to
their property is noted. However, their property is located more than 60m from the open end
of the canopy and at this range, it is considered unlikely that any significant disturbance
would occur. The Head of Environmental Health has advised that they do not currently get
complaints about the loading/unloading of the home delivery vans. However, complaints
were received in 2011 regarding the carrying out of maintenance and servicing of these vans
on the highway at inappropriate times of the day and week. Between 2011 and 2013, three
complaints were also received regarding the jet washing of these vehicles, also at
unreasonable times of the night and day. While these matters seem to be resolved, as there
have been no further complaints received by this department since that time, Environmental
Health would be concerned that the provision of a dedicated loading bay may foster the idea
that this space is a suitable place where such activities can be undertaken. Should the
Council be minded to grant permission the Head of Environmental Health and Housing would
recommend that a condition be imposed restricting the times at which such potentially noisy
activities, to include jet washing and maintenance of vehicles, can take place, namely 08:00
to 18:00 hours Monday to Friday, 09:00 -16:00 hours on Saturdays and at no times on
Sundays or Bank Holidays.

The objectors have commented that if planning permission is granted for this facility, its use
should be restricted to the same hours as those which apply to deliveries to the store
generally, which are specified by condition 25 of planning permission RSH 5684. This
states:

"No lorries shall enter or leave the site for the purposes of loading or unloading except
between the hours of 0700 and 2200 Monday to Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.

Reason - In the interests of the amenities of nearby residential properties."

Home Deliveries are not currently affected by this condition as the service does not use
"lorries" but light vans - this was confirmed by the Solicitor to the Council when the service
was first introduced. When taken at face value, the objectors' suggestion has some merit and
indeed, when planning permission was granted for modifications to the store to facilitate
home deliveries in 2004, the planning permission did include such a condition. However,
since the applicant's home delivery service operates between the hours of 0600 and 2300,
seven days a week, such a condition would entail a substantial reduction in the service they
currently provide on Mondays to Saturdays and the abandonment of deliveries on Sundays.
It is considered that such a condition imposed on the present proposal, given the fallback
position of continued operation using the highway, would not meet the requirement for
conditions to be reasonable and would effectively remove the benefit of the permission being
sought to the extent that it would not be implemented. The benefit of the proposed acoustic
screening and improved facilities would not therefore result. Given the limited noise

Pack Page 28
21



associated with the Home Delivery Vehicles entering and leaving the site, and the protection
that would be afforded by the acoustic fencing, it is considered that the imposition of such a
condition is unnecessary and is likely to be counter-productive.

Impact upon highway safety -

The proposal to provide dedicated parking and loading bays for home delivery vehicles
would free up parking bays on the highway and would ensure that vehicles being loaded and
unloaded (or waiting for attention) do not obstruct access to the service yard on the northern
side of the store, which also serves other stores in Princes Mead. The Transportation
Strategy Officer initially raised concerns that there may be insufficient room within the area to
allow the delivery vehicles to easily manoeuvre in and out of the. However, on 23 May, a
revised layout was submitted together with swept path diagrams to demonstrate that the
layout would enable vehicles to satisfactorily manoeuvre within the site. On this basis the
Transportation Strategy Officer raises no objection to the amended proposal.

Conclusion -

It is considered that the proposal to formalise the store's arrangements for home deliveries
would not adversely affect visual amenity, residential amenity or highway safety and that it
accords with Policies SP4, CP1, CP2 and CP16 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and saved
Policies TC1, ENV17 and ENV48 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy.

FULL RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 The permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved drawings — 2288-90-03 REV A, 2288-21-01 REV A, 2288-00-01 REV D,
2288-VT-01 and 2288-VT-02.

Reason - To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission granted

3 No works shall start on site until a detailed specification for the acoustic fencing, to
include details of its appearance, construction and noise attenuation properties, has
been submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
acoustic fence shall be installed in accordance with the approved details before the
loading canopy and link canopy are brought inti use and shall be retained thereafter.

Reason - In the interests of visual and to ensure that it provides adequate protection
to residential amenity. *

4 No works shall start on site until a fully detailed landscape and planting scheme (to
include, where appropriate, both landscape planting and ecological enhancement) and
details of a barrier to prevent vehicle parking on the landscaped area, has been

Pack Page 29
22



submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be completed and retained in accordance with the details so
approved.

Reason - To ensure the development makes an adequate contribution to visual
amenity.”

5 No servicing, maintenance, repairs or jet-washing of home delivery vehicles shall take
place in the vehicle loading, parking and manoeuvring areas shown on drawing 2288-
00-01 Rev D outside the hours of 08:00 to 18:00 hours Monday to Friday, 09:00 -
16:00 hours on Saturdays and at no times on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason - In the interests of residential amenity.

6 All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of the
buildings or the practical completion of the development, whichever is the sooner.

Reason -To ensure the development makes an adequate contribution to visual
amenity.

Informatives

1 INFORMATIVE — The Local Planning Authority’s commitment to working with the
applicants in a positive and proactive way is demonstrated by its offer of pre-
application discussion to all, free of charge, and assistance in the validation and
determination of applications through the provision of clear guidance regarding
necessary supporting information or amendments both before and after submission, in
line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

2 INFORMATIVE - REASONS FOR APPROVAL- The Council has granted permission
because it is considered that the proposal to formalise the store's arrangements for
home deliveries would not adversely affect visual amenity, residential amenity or
highway safety and that it accords with Policies SP4, CP1, CP2 and CP16 of the
Rushmoor Core Strategy and saved Policies TC1, ENV17 and ENV48 of the
Rushmoor Core Strategy. It is therefore considered that subject to compliance with
the attached conditions, and taking into account all other material planning
considerations, including the provisions of the development plan, the proposal would
be acceptable. This also includes a consideration of whether the decision to grant
permission is compatible with the Human Rights Act 1998.

3 INFORMATIVE - Your attention is specifically drawn to the conditions marked *.
These condition(s) require the submission of details, information, drawings etc. to the
Local Planning Authority BEFORE WORKS START ON SITE or, require works to be
carried out BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF USE OR FIRST OCCUPATION OF ANY
BUILDING. Development started, carried out or occupied without first meeting the
requirements of these conditions is effectively development carried out WITHOUT
PLANNING PERMISSION. The Council will consider the expediency of taking
enforcement action against any such development and may refer to any such breach
of planning control when responding to local searches. Submissions seeking to
discharge conditions or requests for confirmation that conditions have been complied
with must be accompanied by the appropriate fee.

Pack Page 30
23






woTIpTO J | oD 9 OO ST 0]

a 10-00-882¢

-

i | [T

]

ueidBudoos
peos sayuiss el § HOG

[ ™ ™ =] =] =] asnoyaiepm

= i B

6uddoys SO - 2RWWODD 15y 3Be B A B PAISUR PUE MO Y b P
Bq-H

Buiddoyg awoy

112 piND anusduen ‘UBnoioguE s ‘SpEsN 15

alojsiadng ybnosoquie 4

= PIEA 0INISS
7 ey : o o s o : i
| N )

_ wssssl _
= WO'9LL
wsique

ealy BulleUSIBW PaIBAcD

062099 #1210 X4 060BLY 91210 PL woRea0s pIEpUEIS wOSY %4

2105 N3 53 pue
8 s ooy

saong Buping §Jsusiesg ALY 5357550 e Duskgduco
woganas orss it

9y

3345 BP0 0) UGS PUe Y 10 dias

===

o e Hoom

E
w|  weriee| o poeon st topmd s

Aoue>3an audpue peq 10

w| o] Tt e paon o s

o oo <3

[ R e

spospw dunys | 5w
Sumows Bupapu s 4o 35005 pue ss0100 ag | TGS

3Wwayas
u1133]|03 pUE }211J ON

awayds
ul uo1393||0d JaAoy oN

210
i wooipjo) B 290 ot oy odwos3 ong

| . ) ) W W) = ==~ "=
| . D ﬂ -

ueiquie

=1 = i i B— @
i |
i ReqrH
PIEA SoINES 7 Wt : WEORE _7 TRRE = T C RO : T : TR buiddoys auioH
1 ) 0 ubsgegL
ﬁ = W0'aLL

ealy Buijeysiepy pesenoo

,
|
j

H
HNVL dRd
HIADINI™LS

Sieq Buymd uguaro jo £or
- T RO 3510 (I WO I

1308 585 0 oot 20 o 500U B Loy LIRSy

B3R U Siersuges pue seq

o Pom ou pearpasdas oq ou e e 34Budden 5 Somes
HINIVIDSIA

wou pusn pusion | wen

25

Pack Page 32



v 10-l2-882¢

ONILSIX3 NOLLYAT13 N¥IHLION ONILSIX3 NOILYAZ 13 NYZHLNOS

Bupued

suoRenel3 feussikg

Buiddoys dWoH - 20.WW0DS
o

1127109 anusduy UBnoiogue ‘speon 153

aloysiadng ybnosoquie 4

‘a‘ )

O L AW ST
IS Eb AU U3
962009210 04 0ROPLY P1ZV0 BL

sooues BupIng % Jousreeq fedouid
weRnR) RUoEYe
asLni

ONILSIX3 NOILVAI T N¥3LSY3

1

PUN0.GB10} Ul 80UB} 18AW BUPNIOUI - (3SOEOU NOLLYAITA NY3LSYI
ousy Jaqui) uBy WE

329011 617 Uo pOyRCE 0 PO 5Q DU 2 ) Sy

RSO3 0 R RS R ARSI U A
619000 Wl

Amimpsin PO 1 3 BOIRIREER AN

us

Al e siap OB 5 Bamesp 8 ) e 1 50

A o S o o b e
FINIVIDSIa|

Pack Page 33

26




v LO-LABBET

Mgw o
SIDUEH ) QUPID

U N L L

e T 43 DINIS AN 777 .\EV:V/‘N el O BRI T
6 TN Tar T |

/. —

. T . P

WO LSRN

s oy B g e )l Ay S

Y SO 4 AL ] s W i L)

HENY TS0

27

Pack Page 34



Buprd L, EUOBIPEE 08 BUNRES BRI,

. L D 4 B LA

yBnaoguie

B I P

sl smf sl T

HNWL

HIATHNI S

Pie L SNARE

o g g P S L S )

AN S 44 ] s W i L)

HENY TS0

Pack Page 35

28



Development Management Committee Item 10
22nd June 2016 Report No.PLN1620
Section C

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the
date of preparation, which is more than two weeks in advance of the Committee meeting.
Because of these time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the
final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comment. Any changes or necessary
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

Case Officer David Stevens
Application No. 16/00307/FULPP
Date Valid 21st April 2016
Expiry date of 18th May 2016

consultations

Proposal Proposed conversion of existing retail building to form 3 no.
dwellings and construction of 7 no. dwellings to the rear, together
with associated access, parking and landscaping, following
demolition of existing buildings to rear

Address The Potters Arms 182 Cove Road Farnborough
Ward Cove And Southwood

Applicant FPC (Farnborough) LLP

Agent White Young Green

Recommendation Grant subject to s106 Planning Obligation

Description & Relevant History

The site is on the north side of Cove Road approximately 70 metres east of the West Heath
Roundabout and railway bridge; and the junction with Nash Close approximately 40 metres
to the east. The application site is that of the former Potters Arms Public House with vacant
ancillary landlords’ living accommodation over and a detached store building to the rear;
together with a separate detached single-storey 10-bedroom motel further to the rear within
the site. The motel is vacant and unused. With the exception of the buildings, much of the
ground area of the site surrounding the former Pub and to the side and in front of the motel
building is hardstanding.

Planning permission was granted in May 2002 for the erection of the motel building,
02/00193/FUL. Planning permission was granted in May 2003 for the erection of a single-
storey side extension to the Pub, 03/00213/FUL. In July 2014, permission was granted for
the demolition of existing raised decking areas, motel block and store building to rear and
erection of single-storey extension and external alterations to Public House
(14/00484/FULPP); however this permission was not implemented and the Pub closed in
early 2015. The Public House subsequently changed under permitted development rights to
retail (Use Class A1) in 2015. It is currently used as a shop by Age Concern.

Pack Page 36
29



The site, of irregular shape, has an area of 0.185 hectares, a road frontage of 27 metres, and
broadens to a width of 50 metres where it abuts the embankment of the railway to the rear.
The depth of the site from front to back varies between 50 metres to the west and 65 metres
to the east. The east boundary abuts the side of No.182 Cove Road, a semi-detached two-
storey house. A small section of this boundary adjoins the end of the garden of No.5 Nash
Close, a detached two-storey house. To the west side boundary is shared with No.184 Cove
Road, a detached bungalow.

The current proposal is for the demolition of the motel building and detached former Pub
store building; extension and retention of the former Pub building and conversion into a
terrace of three two-bedroom two-storey houses (Units 8-10 inclusive) fronting Cove Road;
and erection of a further seven two-bedroom two-storey houses to the rear of the site in the
form of four and three house terraces fronting a private parking courtyard; Units 1-4 and 5-7
inclusive respectively. A total of 10 two-bedroom houses.

Each of the proposed houses would be provided with two allocated parking spaces located
nearby. A pair of visitor parking spaces would be provided within the parking courtyard. All of
the proposed houses would have private rear garden areas. Due to the set-back of the
frontage units from the road, House Nos.1-4 would also have small front garden areas.

The proposed new-build houses (Units 1-7 inclusive) are of a conventional two-storey design
with simple transverse ridge roofs reaching a maximum height of 7.9 metres at the ridge and
4.9 metres at the eaves. The roof of the existing former Pub building would remain fully-
hipped; and the proposed first floor side extension would be built over the existing single-
storey side extension and would also have a fully-hipped roof. The proposed extension is
designed to be visually subordinate to the existing building, with lower roof ridge and eaves
heights.

The new-build houses would be finished with ground floor brick, first floor painted render, and
tiled roofs to complement the existing external materials of the former Pub building.

The application is accompanied by a Planning, Design & Access Statement, a Transport
Statement, a ‘Sitecheck’ Report, an Acoustic Testing Report, a Vibration Impact Assessment,
an Arboricultural Implications Assessment Report, an Ecology Survey Report, and a
Sustainability/Environmental Performance Statement.

The applicants are seeking to prepare a s106 Planning Obligation in the form of a Unilateral
Undertaking to secure financial contributions towards the off-site provision and/or
enhancement of Public Open Space, and in respect of the SPA Mitigation and Avoidance in
order to address relevant planning policies.

Consultee Responses

Natural England No objections subject to an appropriate financial
contribution towards SPA mitigation and avoidance being
secured with a s106 Planning Obligation. Generic advice
provided concerning other statutorily protected wildlife
species.

Transportation Strategy Officer No highways objection. No Transport Contribution required
as it is considered that the traffic generation potential of the
proposed development would be no worse than that of the

Pack Page 37
30



Environmental Health

Parks Development Officer

Ecologist Officer

Aboricultural Officer

Community - Contracts
Manager

Thames Water

Hampshire & 1.O.W. Wildlife
Trust

Crime Prevention Design
Advisor

County Archaeologist

Network Rail

Planning Policy

Neighbours notified

existing use of the site.
No objection subject to conditions and informatives.

No objections and provides information on projects for
which a POS contribution would be used.

No objection subject to the recommendations of the
submitted Ecology Report being implemented in full.

No objections subject to the tree protection measures
specified by the submitted Arboricultural Impact
Assessment being implemented in full.

No objections subject to further details being submitted to
demonstrate provision of an adequate bin collection
standing area to serve at least Units 1-7 inclusive.

No objections.

No comments received during the consultation period,
thereby presumed to have no objections.

No objections, but makes comments concerning the
detailed design recommending the re-location/design of
some rear garden access gates and provision of some
lighting. [Officer Note: the applicants have responded to
these comments with amended plans that re-design the
rear garden access gates and now show provision of
lighting within the development using low-level bollard
lights]

No objections : Although the wider area is noted for pottery
kilns, there is no record of them at this site. In addition the
site has been previously impacted by the existing
development and this will have compromised
archaeological survival.

No objections : Network Rail have previously provided
comments to the applicant in respect of the proposed
development and would advise that they are adhered to as
the project moves forward. No further comments to make
at this time.

No policy objections.

In addition to posting a site notice and press advertisement, 18 individual letters of
notification were sent to properties in Cove Road and Nash Close, including all properties
directly adjoining the application site.

Pack Page 38
31



Neighbour comments
To date there have been no representations received in respect of the proposals.

A letter has been received from a relative of the occupier of No.180 Cove Road, which is the
immediately adjoining property to the east of the application site, acknowledging receipt of
the Council’s notification letter, but making no comment on the application proposals.

Policy and determining issues

The site is located within the built-up area of Farnborough. It is not in a Conservation Area,
nor is it Listed or located adjoining a Listed Building. The building is not identified as a
Building of Local Importance in the Council’'s “Buildings of Local Importance” SPD.
Furthermore, there was no nomination of the property as an “Asset of Community Value”
(ACV) under the Localism Act when the owners sought and subsequently implemented the
permitted development change of use from Public House (Use Class A4) to retail shop (Use
Class A1) in 2015. Since the lawful planning use of the property now falls within Use Class
A1 (retail), the Council’'s adopted “Development Affecting Public Houses” SPD is NOT
relevant to the consideration of the current application. The mainline railway adjoining the
rear of the site is identified as a ‘green corridor’.

The Rushmoor Core Strategy was adopted by the Council in October 2011, replacing the
Rushmoor Local Plan Review (1996-2011) as the Development Plan for the area. To this end
Core Strategy Policies CP1 (Sustainable Development Principles), CP2 (Design and
Heritage), CP3 (Renewable Energy and Sustainable Construction), CP4 (Surface Water
Flooding), CP5 (Meeting Housing Needs and Housing Mix), CP10 (Infrastructure Provision),
CP11 (Green Infrastructure Network), CP12 (Open Space, Sport and Recreation), CP13
(Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area), CP15 (Biodiversity), CP16 (Reducing and
Managing Travel Demand) and CP17 (Investing in Transport) are relevant to the
consideration of the current proposals.

Whilst the Core Strategy introduced new policies replacing specific Local Plan policies, a
number of Local Plan policies continue to be 'saved' and therefore remain in use for the time
being. In this respect, Local Plan Policies ENV5 (green corridors), ENV17 (general
development criteria), H14 (amenity space), ENV41-43 (flood risk) and OR4/OR4.1 are
'saved' policies that remain relevant to the consideration of this application.

Also relevant are the Council's adopted SPDs "Housing Density and Design" and
"Sustainable Design and Construction" both adopted in April 2006; 'Transport Contributions'
adopted in April 2008; and “Parking Standards” adopted in 2012. Since these documents
were subject to extensive public consultation and consequent amendment before being
adopted by the Council, some significant weight can be attached to the requirements of
these documents. The advice contained in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) is also relevant.

Core Strategy Policy CP6 requires, subject to viability, provision of 35% affordable housing
with developments of 15 or more net dwellings. However, since the scheme proposes only
ten additional units, the requirements of this policy do not apply in this case.

In this context, the key determining issues are considered to be:

1. The Principle of the proposals;
2. Design and Visual Impact including impact on trees;

Pack Page 39
32



. Impact on Neighbours;

. The Living Environment Provided;

. Highways Considerations;

. Impact on Wildlife;

. Drainage Issues;

. Renewable Energy and Sustainability; and
. Public Open Space.

O©oONO O1h W

Commentary
1. Principle -

The application proposes the re-development of existing under-used site within an
established residential area in Farnborough. Within reason this continues to be a clear
objective of both Government planning guidance and local planning policy. This approach is
also acknowledged in the Council's. Supplementary Planning Document "Housing Density
and Design" published in April 2006.

A “Development Affecting Public Houses” SPD was adopted by the Council in June 2015.
This sets out a standard and consistent approach for an applicant seeking to demonstrate
that there is no longer-term need for a Public House, including a further requirement to
demonstrate that alternative Public Houses are readily accessible to serve the needs of the
community. These matters must be considered and found acceptable before planning
permission can be granted for proposals resulting in the loss of a Public House. However the
SPD is NOT applicable to the consideration of the current application. This is because,
although the application property was, until recently, in planning use terms in Public House
use (Use Class A4), this planning use was legally extinguished when the owner changed the
use of the property to retail use (Use Class A1). In planning terms there is no longer a Public
House at this particular site to be lost as a result of the proposals. Furthermore, there is no
planning policy with which the Council could seek to resist the loss of the current shop use of
the site as it is not located within a local shopping parade, or town or district centre.

The application is accompanied by a desk-top ‘Sitecheck’ report that examines the potential
sources of ground contamination that could affect the site based on the known historical uses
of the site. However, the Council’s Environmental Health Team advise that this is not an
appropriate substitute for a Site Investigation Report, which would be produced following
actual testing of the ground, although a ‘Sitecheck’. Report is a useful precursor to a proper
site investigation being undertaken. Indeed, the conclusions of the submitted report do not
have regard to the proposed use of the site for residential purposes, which is a more
sensitive end-use of land in terms of potential contamination issues. Furthermore, whilst
there does not appear to be any history of commercial//industrial activity on the site other
than the former public house use, Environmental Health advise that they frequently deal with
sites exhibiting elevated levels of contamination due to car parking activity, which took place
for many years on a significant swathe of this site. As the application is for the removal of the
existing tarmacked areas and its use, in part, for private garden space, it is considered that it
would be prudent for some form of site investigation to be undertaken prior to works
commencing to ensure that the remaining soils are suitable for the proposed residential end
use.

Despite the name of the former Public House and finds of post-Medieval pottery and kilns in
other parts of Cove being the local archaeological interest, the County Archaeologist has
advised that there is no recorded archaeological interest in respect of this site. Further, he
considers that the existing developed nature of the site would, in any event, have

Pack Page 40
33



compromised archaeological survival. Accordingly, no objections are raised to the proposals
on archaeological grounds.

It is therefore considered that the proposals are acceptable in principle subject to normal
development control criteria being satisfied.

2. Visual Impact -

The vicinity has a mixed character, with a variety of dwelling types, ages and external
materials, with terraced, semi-detached and detached houses and some bungalows all
represented. The proposed frontage house terrace (Units 8-10 inclusive) would be created
from the extension, alteration and conversion of the existing former Pub building. The
proposed extension is considered to be sympathetic to the existing building. Although the
area to the front of this existing building would continue to be used mainly for parking, its
appearance would be softened with new surfacing materials and landscape planting.
Combined with the retention of the existing building, it is considered that the proposed
frontage would be sympathetic to, and integrate well into, the character and appearance of
the existing street scene in Cove Road. The remaining proposed houses (Units 1-7 inclusive)
would be new-build properties of conventional two-storey height arranged in terraces set
back in a backland position within the site. In this position they would be less visible, and at a
distance, from the street, but nevertheless, also maintain the existing overall character and
appearance of the area.

Appropriate quality external finishing and surfacing materials can be secured by imposition of
the usual conditions. The proposals also represent the opportunity to introduce landscape
planting to soften the appearance of the central courtyard area within the development and
the boundaries with adjoining residential properties in addition to the site road frontage. The
existing property has limited landscape planting and screening from neighbours. It is
therefore considered that the proposals are likely to improve the visual appearance of the
site.

Although a number of trees are located on the railway embankment beyond the rear
boundary of the site, and a single specimen pine tree is located in the rear garden of No.180
Cove Road, none are covered by a Tree Preservation Order or, indeed, are considered
particularly worthy of retention having regard to saved Local Plan Policy ENV13.
Nevertheless, the applicants submitted Arboricultural Implications Assessment identifies
measures to be taken to ensure the protection of all off-site trees during the construction
period, which is considered to be satisfactory.

To the rear of the site the mainline railway is located on an embankment such that the
proposed development site is potentially visible to the public travelling by train. For this
reason the mainline railway, amongst a number of linear transport corridors crossing the
Borough, is identified as a ‘green corridor’. Particular consideration should be given to
whether or not proposed development would detract from the visual character and
appearance of the Borough as seen from a green corridor. In this case the railway
embankment to the rear of the site is treed, which would help soften the appearance of the
scheme. Furthermore, the site is already developed with a vacant motel building and
adjoining car parking areas, whereas the proposed development has been designed to place
residential gardens against the railway boundary of the site. Having residential gardens
abutting the railway is not at all unusual and it is considered that the proposed development
would result in an improvement in the visual appearance of the site as seen by people
travelling by rail. It is considered that the proposals are acceptable in the context of saved
Local Plan Policy ENV5 and Policy CP11 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy.

Pack Page 41
34



Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed development would integrate effectively into
its surroundings and not significantly detract from the character and appearance of the area.
It is therefore considered that the proposals are acceptable in visual terms.

3. Impact on Neighbours -

It is considered that the proposed houses would have entirely conventional relationships with
all their neighbours. It is evident that particular attention has been paid by the applicants to
consider and address the relationships of the proposed houses with each other and with
existing neighbouring properties, including detailed proposals for the provision of obscure-
glazing where required. Due to a combination of house design, orientation and separation
distances, it is considered that no undue and unacceptable relationships with neighbouring
properties would arise in planning terms.

In responding to comments received from the Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser, the
applicants are proposing to provide low-level lighting bollards within the scheme. However
the Council’'s Environmental Health team consider that this would be unlikely to cause any
significant nuisance to neighbours. In any event, it would clearly be possible to provide
screening in the event that any problems were to be raised in this respect in the future.

The usual planning conditions can be imposed to ensure that the obscure glazing is installed
and retained; and for no further windows to be installed in the side and rear first floor
elevations or roofs of the proposed houses.

It is considered that there would be no material and harmful impacts on all neighbours in
planning terms.

4. Living Environment Created -

Each of the proposed dwellings would be provided with private rear gardens sufficient to
provide an acceptable living environment. The internal layout of a development is a
functional matter between a developer and his client and is to some extent covered by the
Building Regulations. It is therefore a matter for prospective purchasers/occupiers to decide
whether they choose to live in the proposed development.

Nevertheless, the Council’'s Environmental Health team have considered the Noise and
Vibration Assessment Reports submitted with the application on account of the site adjoining
the main-line railway and, indeed, also adjoining a busy local distributor road (Cove Road).

The submitted Noise Impact Assessment concludes that road traffic is the dominant source
of noise likely to affect this site rather than railway noise. However, with appropriate
mitigation, it is considered that a satisfactory internal noise environment could be achieved
for all habitable rooms within the proposed dwellings. In this respect, the submitted Report
makes a number of recommendations for attenuation measures to be incorporated into the
design of the buildings, notably including provision of acoustic glazing to be installed on
various facades of the proposed dwellings. Provided that this level of acoustic protection is
provided, Environmental Health are satisfied that habitable rooms within the scheme would
achieve the recommended noise criteria set out in BS8233:2014 with windows closed.

Since a satisfactory internal noise environmental would not be achieved if windows were
opened, the Report continues by assuming that each dwelling would also be provided with
some form of passive ventilation system to enable adequate ventilation of rooms without

Pack Page 42
35



residents having to open their windows. Since road noise is the dominant noise source, it is
further considered that the buildings would provide significant shielding to the external
garden areas of the proposed dwellings, since these all face away from the road behind the
buildings. Environmental Health consider that the design of the scheme in this respect should
achieve the recommended design criteria for external noise as specified within
BS8233:2014. However, since the applicants have not provided specific details of noise
insulation and fresh (acoustic) air ventilation measures, Environmental Health recommend
that it would be advisable to require submission of these details by condition.

Results of vibration monitoring in respect of the railway indicate that levels are such that
adverse comment from potential future residents would be unlikely, in accordance with BS
6472 methodology. This would mirror Environmental Health's knowledge of the immediate
area, where there have been no complaints of railway induced vibration from occupiers of
existing residential properties. Environmental Health consider that this issue is satisfactorily
addressed.

Subject to the imposition of conditions as recommended by Environmental Health, it is
considered that the living environment created would be acceptable.

5. Highways Considerations -

Since the existing lawful use of the site is as a retail shop with separate motel
accommodation located to the rear, the traffic generation potential for these uses is the base
position from which to consider the highway impacts of the proposed development. In this
respect, the proposed access arrangements to the site involve the demarcation of a single
access point to and from the road in the place of the existing arrangement, where vehicles
can currently enter or leave the road at almost any position along the site frontage depending
upon the extent/pattern of use of the on-site parking. The proposed new access point would
have acceptable visibility sightlines. The proposed access road is of acceptable dimensions
and has adequate visibility splays. The internal design and layout of the site is also
considered to be acceptable. The Transportation Strategy Officer is also satisfied that the
traffic associated with the proposed development would have no material and harmful impact
on traffic conditions on Cove Road. Indeed, it is considered that there would be a reduction in
overall traffic generated by the site as a result of the proposed development, compared with
the potential of the existing commercial uses to be operate much more intensively than is
currently the case.

The proposed houses would each be provided with two parking spaces each, together with
provision of two on-site visitor spaces. All would be of acceptable size, on-site location and
arrangement. This provision meets the Council's adopted maximum parking standards in full
and, as such, the proposed development makes appropriate provision for parking on-site to
support itself. Cycle parking would be provided by sheds in the rear gardens of each of the
proposed dwelling plots.

Sheds are shown to be provided to provide both on-plot bin and cycle storage for each
individual unit. The refuse/recycling bins would simply be moved by residents to a designated
collection point when required ready for emptying by the Council. This is the usual way in
which bins are collected for emptying and, as such, it is considered to be an acceptable
arrangement for the proposed development. The Contracts Manager (Domestic Refuse
Collection) has queried whether the indicated bin collection point for Units 1-7 inclusive
would be big enough for all of the bins it would need to accommodate. However, there is
considered to be sufficient within the layout of the proposed scheme space in the vicinity to
increase the size of the area shown on the submitted plans. It is considered that a planning

Pack Page 43
36



condition can be imposed to require the submission of suitably revised proposals in this
respect.

The Council’s Transportation Strategy Officer has confirmed that no Transport Contribution
can be justified in this case given that the proposed development is considered likely to
generate less traffic than would arise from the resumption of more intensive commercial use.

It is considered that the proposals are acceptable in highways terms.
6. Impact on Wildlife -

The Rushmoor Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and
Mitigation Strategy comprises two elements. Firstly the maintenance of Suitable Alternative
Natural Greenspace (SANG) at Hawley Meadows in order to divert additional recreational
pressure away from the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (TBHSPA) and
secondly the maintenance of a range of Strategic Access Management and Monitoring
Measures to avoid displacing visitors from one part of the TBHSPA to another and to
minimize the impact of visitors on the TBHSPA. The proposal meets the criteria against
which requests to allocate capacity at the Hawley Meadows SANG will be considered.

The applicant is aware of this requirement and the need to make a financial contribution of
£53,360.00 to maintain the Hawley Meadows SPA mitigation scheme to be secured by way
of a section 106 planning obligation. In this respect the applicant has contacted the Council’s
Legal Team to pursue this matter. Natural England raises no objection to proposals for new
residential development in the form of Standing Advice provided that it is in accordance with
the above strategy. Provided the applicants submit a satisfactory completed s106
Undertaking by no later than 15 July 2016 it is considered that they would have satisfactorily
mitigated for the impact of their proposed development on the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area in compliance with the requirements of Core Strategy Policies CP11 and
CP13.

According to the submitted Ecological Survey report there is some limited potential for
protected wildlife species existing or likely to exist at the application site. The Report
therefore correctly identifies the need for bat surveys to be undertaken prior to demolition
and any disturbance to the roof of the existing former Pub building. The Report also identifies
the provision of bat boxes within the roof of the proposed houses as an appropriate form of
mitigation. Furthermore, the existing vegetation within the site should be cut in a phased
manner to allow any reptiles to disperse onto adjoining land. The Council’'s Ecology &
Biodiversity Officer considers this approach to be appropriate. Accordingly, on a
precautionary basis it is considered that the granting of planning permission should be
subject to a condition requiring the identified measures to be undertaken, together with an
informative advising the applicant of the requirements of the Wildlife & Countryside Act with
respect to any protected wildlife species encountered on site.

7. Surface Water Drainage —

The proposed development is considered likely to result in an improvement in the surface
water drainage situation despite the additional hard-surfacing that would occur as a result of
the additional building. The applicants indicate that permeable paving would be used and a
SUDs system would be incorporated to deal with surface water drainage on site. Accordingly
it is considered appropriate to deal with this matter through the imposition of a condition
requiring the submission of details of the system to be installed and how this would be
maintained. The site is located within Flood Zone 1, which is land at the lowest risk of

Pack Page 44
37



flooding. As a result, the Environment Agency raise no objections as standing advice and no
mitigation measures are indicated as being necessary. This being the case, it is considered
that there is no requirement under Policy CP4 for mitigation measures to be incorporated into
the development. Accordingly, subject to the imposition of a condition to require the
submission of details in this respect, it is considered that the requirements of Core Strategy
Policy CP4 would be met.

8. Sustainable Development and Renewable Energy -

The application, is accompanied by a sustainability assessment to address the requirements
of Policy CP3. However following the Royal Assent of the Deregulation Bill 2015 (on 26
March 2015) the government's current policy position is that planning permissions should no
longer be granted requiring or subject to conditions requiring compliance with any technical
housing standards such as the Code for Sustainable Homes. This is other than for those
areas where Councils have existing policies referring to the attainment of such standards. In
the case of Rushmoor this means that we can require energy performance in accordance
with Code Level 4 as set out in policy CP3 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy. Such measures
may be secured by way of condition and on this basis no objection is raised to the proposal
in terms of Policy CP3.

9. Public Open Space -

The Local Plan seeks to ensure that adequate open space provision is made to cater for
future residents in connection with new residential developments. Core Strategy Policy CP10
and saved Local Plan Policies OR4 and OR4.1 allow provision to be made on the site, or in
appropriate circumstances, a contribution to be made towards upgrading facilities nearby.
The policy does not set a threshold of a particular number of dwellings or size of site above
which the provision is required. The site is not big enough to accommodate anything other
than the development proposed and any associated landscape planting.

This is a circumstance where a contribution (in this case £17,632.00 towards the off-site
provision of public open space comprising: Park furniture, interpretation signage, footpath
renewal and habitat management at Southwood Meadows, Farnborough; and provision of
moveable goals to improve playing surface at Southwood Playing Fields, Farnborough)
secured by way of a planning obligation in the form of a Unilateral Undertaking would be
appropriate. Subject to the applicant satisfactorily completing and submitting the s106
Undertaking in this respect, the proposal is considered to be acceptable within the terms of
Core Strategy Policies CP10, CP11 and CP12 and saved Local Plan Policy OR4.

Conclusions : The proposals are considered to be acceptable in principle, would have no
material and harmful impact upon the visual character and appearance of the area, have no
material and adverse impact on neighbours, would provide an acceptable living environment,
and, are acceptable in highway terms. On the basis of the provision of a contribution towards
the Hawley Meadows SPA mitigation and avoidance scheme, the proposals are considered
to have no significant impact upon the nature conservation interest and objectives of the
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area. The proposals are thereby considered
acceptable having regard to Policies SS1, CP1, CP2, CP5, CP10, CP11, CP12, CP13,
CP15, CP16, and CP17 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and saved Local Plan Policies
ENV5, ENV13, ENV17, ENV41-43, TR10, OR4/OR4.1 and H14.

Pack Page 45
38



Full Recommendation

It is recommended that subject to the completion of a satisfactory Agreement under Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 by 15 July 2016 to secure appropriate
financial contributions towards open space and SPA mitigation, the Head of Planning in
consultation with the Chairman be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to the
following conditions and informatives:-

However, in the event that a satisfactory s106 Agreement is not received by 15 July 2016 the
Head of Planning, in consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to refuse planning
permission on the grounds that the proposal does not make satisfactory provision for public
open space in accordance with Core Strategy Policies CP10, CP11 and CP12 and saved
Local Plan Policy OR4; and a financial contribution to mitigate the effect of the development
on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area in accordance with the Rushmoor
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy
and Core Strategy Policies CP11 and CP13.

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of one year
from the date of this permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, to reflect
the objectives of the Council's Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy as amended July 2014 and to accord with the
resolution of Rushmoor's Cabinet on 17 June 2014 in respect of Planning Report no
PLN1420.

2 Unless agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the permission hereby
granted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved drawings —
PLC Architects 14.2018. 128 Rev.P12; -129 Rev.P12; -120 Rev.P20 (amended site
layout plan received 25 May 2016); -126 Rev.P13; -127 Rev.P12; -123 Rev.P13; -124
Rev.P13; -125 Rev.P13; -121 Rev.P13; -122 Rev.P13; and Transport Planning
Associates Drawing Nos.1511-75 SP01 Rev.F; -SP02 Rev.F; -SP03 Rev.F; -SP04
Rev.F; -SP05 Rev.F; -SP06 Rev.F; -SP08 Rev.A; and -SP09.

Reason - To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission granted.

3 No works shall start on site until a schedule and/or samples of the external materials
to be used in the development have been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance. *

4 No works shall start on site until a schedule and/or samples of surfacing materials,
including those to access driveways/forecourts to be used in the development have
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance and drainage arrangements.*
5 No works shall start on site in respect of the new-build dwellinghouse Units 1-7

inclusive hereby approved until plans showing details of the proposed ground levels,
proposed finished floor levels, levels of any paths, drives, and parking areas and the

Pack Page 46
39



10

height of any retaining walls within the application site have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
completed and retained in accordance with the details so approved.

Reason - To ensure a satisfactory form of development in relation to neighbouring
property.

The dwellings hereby permitted shall not be occupied until:- (a) the means of
enclosure of the application site with all existing neighbouring properties as shown on
approved Site Layout Plan Drawing No.14.2018.120 Rev.P20 has been implemented
in full; and (b) details of all screen and boundary walls, fences, hedges or other means
of enclosure to be provided between the dwellings hereby approved have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be completed and retained in accordance with the details shown on
the site layout plan hereby approved and as may subsequently be approved with the
submission of details pursuant to this condition.

Reason - To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring property and to ensure a
satisfactory development of the site. *

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development Order) 2015, (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order), no
development falling within Classes, A, B, C, D and E of Part 1 and Classes A and B of
Part 2 of Schedule 2 shall be carried out without the prior permission of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason - To protect the amenities of the area and occupiers of neighbouring
residential properties.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development Order) 2015, (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order), no
additional windows, doors or openings of any kind shall be inserted in the first floor
elevations or roofspace of the development hereby permitted without the prior
permission of the Local Planning Authority. Furthermore, there shall be no alteration of
the size and positions of the windows shown to be provided on the plans hereby
approved.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring properties.

Construction or demolition work of any sort within the area covered by the application
shall only take place between the hours of 0800-1800 on Monday to Fridays and
0800-1300 on Saturdays. No work at all shall take place on Sundays and Bank or
Statutory Holidays.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and to
prevent adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the vicinity.

No works shall start on site until a fully detailed landscape and planting scheme (to
include, where appropriate, both landscape planting and ecological enhancement) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure the development makes an adequate contribution to visual
amenity.”

Pack Page 47
40



11

12

13

14

15

16

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of the
buildings or the practical completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and
any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless
otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - In the interests of amenity and to help achieve a satisfactory standard of
landscaping.

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the off-street parking
facilities shown on the approved plans has been completed and made ready for use
by the occupiers in accordance with the scheme of allocation set out on approved Site
Layout Plan Drawing No0.14.2018.120 Rev.P20. The parking facilities shall be
thereafter retained solely for parking purposes to be used by the occupiers of, and
visitors to, the development as indicated on the approved plans. For the avoidance of
doubt the parking spaces shall not be used for the parking or storage of boats,
caravans or trailers.

Reason - To ensure the provision and availability of adequate off-street parking.

Provision shall be made for services to be placed underground. No overhead wire or
cables or other form of overhead servicing shall be placed over or used in the
development of the application site.

Reason - In the interests of visual amenity.

The on-plot bicycle parking and refuse bin storage facilities hereby approved to be
provided for any individual dwelling shall be implemented and made available for use
by occupiers of each dwelling before its first occupation and retained thereafter for the
use of occupiers of that dwelling for their respective purposes as approved.

Reason - In the interests of amenity and to ensure a more satisfactory form of
development.

No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until plans and details of the location
and extent of a communal bin collection point to serve Units 1-7 inclusive has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details so
approved shall be implemented in full, made available for use and retained thereafter
at all times prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved.

Reason — In the interests of amenity, the safety and convenience of highway users;
and to ensure a more satisfactory development of the site.

The proposed improvements to the vehicular access to the site; including
unobstructed sight-lines of the extent indicated on approved Site Layout Plan Drawing
No0.14.2018.120 Rev.P20; and the reinstatement of the public footway to those
portions of the site frontage no longer required for vehicular access to Cove Road as a
result of the development shall be implemented in full prior to the first occupation of
any of the dwellings hereby approved. The works so undertaken and sight-lines
provided shall be retained thereafter at all times.

Pack Page 48

41



17

18

19

Reason — In the interests of the safety and convenience of highway users.

No works shall start on site until existing trees to be retained adjoining the site have
been adequately protected from damage during site clearance and works in
accordance with the details that are set out in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment
hereby approved with the application. Furthermore, no materials or plant shall be
stored and no buildings erected within protective fencing to be erected at the margins
of the root protection area of each adjoining tree to be retained as appropriate.

Reason - To ensure that existing trees are adequately protected in the interests of the
visual amenities of the site and the locality in general.

No works pursuant to this permission shall commence until there has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: -

i. a desk top study carried out by a competent person documenting all previous
and existing uses of the site and adjoining land, and potential for contamination, with
information on the environmental setting including known geology and hydrogeology.
This report should contain a conceptual model, identifying potential contaminant
pollutant linkages with the proposed development.

ii. if identified as necessary; a site investigation report documenting the extent,
scale and nature of contamination, ground conditions of the site and incorporating
chemical and gas analysis identified as appropriate by the desk top study.

iii. if identified as necessary; a detailed scheme for remedial works and measures
shall be undertaken to avoid risk from contaminants/or gas identified by the site
investigation when the site is developed and proposals for future maintenance and
monitoring, along with verification methodology. Such scheme to include nomination
of a competent person to oversee and implement the works.

Where step iii) above is implemented, following completion of the measures identified
in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation shall be submitted for approval in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure that the site is safe for the development permitted and in the
interests of amenity and pollution prevention.”

In the event that unforeseen ground conditions or materials which suggest potential or
actual contamination are revealed at any time during implementation of the approved
development it must be reported, in writing, immediately to the Local Planning
Authority. A competent person must undertake a risk assessment and assess the
level and extent of the problem and, where necessary, prepare a report identifying
remedial action which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the measures are implemented.

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a
verification report must be prepared and is subject to approval in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Pack Page 49
42



20

21

22

23

24

25

Reason - To ensure that the site is safe for the development permitted and in the
interests of amenity and pollution prevention

Prior to the first occupation of any of the new-build dwellings hereby permitted (Units
1-7 inclusive), details of measures to achieve the energy performance standards in
accordance with Code Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes or equivalent for
each of the dwelling Units 1-7 inclusive hereby permitted shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details as may be approved
shall be implemented in full prior to the first occupation of the dwelling(s) to which they
relate and retained in perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP3 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy.

The proposed windows indicated to be fitted with fixed obscure glass on the plans
hereby permitted shall be installed prior to the first occupation of the development and
retained thereafter at all times. Notwithstanding the indication that those obscurely-
glazed first floor windows marked with an asterix (*) on the approved plans are to be
opening, these windows shall be fixed shut save for any opening fanlight that shall be
a minimum of 1.7 metres above finished internal floor level.

Reason — To accord with the proposals as submitted and in the interests of amenity
and privacy of neighbouring properties.

Prior to the commencement of development details of measures to incorporate
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS) into the new built development shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details as
may be approved shall be implemented in full prior to the first occupation of the newly
built residential units and retained in perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP4 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy. *

No works shall start on site until details of provision for the parking and turning on site
of operatives and construction vehicles during the construction and fitting out works
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
the measures so approved shall be implemented throughout the construction period.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and to
prevent adverse impact on highway conditions in the vicinity.*

The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until fully detailed measures
to protect buildings (and garden areas) from traffic or other external noise have been
implemented in accordance with a scheme to include, for example, bunds, acoustic
barriers, double glazing, acoustic ventilation, which has been first submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To protect the amenity of the occupiers of the development.”

Site clearance and works to implement the permission hereby permitted shall be
undertaken in accordance with the recommendations of the EcoSupport Ecology
Survey Report submitted with the application. If bats are found to be present at the
site, no works shall continue and the applicant shall notify Natural England for advice
and appropriate licencing prior to the re-commencement of any works at the site. In
the event that bats are found to be present when works to the roof of the existing

Pack Page 50

43



26

former Pub building to be retained are being undertaken, the roof slates shall be
removed by hand, and in should any bats be found, works shall cease immediately
and the applicant shall notify Natural England for advice and appropriate licencing of
further works, as appropriate.

Reason - In the interests of the protection of bats.

Other than any domestic exterior lighting installed on and within the curtilages of the
dwellings hereby permitted; and the low-level lighting bollards annotated on approved
Site Layout Plan Drawing No0.14.2018.120 Rev.P20 as specified by additional details
received by the Council on 25 May 2016; there shall be no other external lighting
installed with the development hereby permitted.

Reason - In the interests of the amenities of nearby residential properties; and to
ensure that there is no unnecessary use of lighting at the site.

INFORMATIVES

INFORMATIVE - REASONS FOR APPROVAL - The Council has granted permission
because:-

The proposals are considered to be acceptable in principle, would have no material
and harmful impact upon the visual character and appearance of the area, have no
material and adverse impact on neighbours, would provide an acceptable living
environment, and, are acceptable in highway terms. On the basis of the provision of a
contribution towards the Hawley Meadows SPA mitigation and avoidance scheme, the
proposals are considered to have no significant impact upon the nature conservation
interest and objectives of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area. On the
basis of the provision of a contribution towards the enhancement of existing public
open space in the vicinity of the site, the proposals are considered to comply with the
Council’s policies concerning provision and enhancement of public open space. The
proposals are thereby considered acceptable having regard to Policies SS1, CP1,
CP2, CP5, CP10, CP11, CP12, CP13, CP15, CP16, and CP17 of the Rushmoor Core
Strategy and saved Local Plan Policies ENV5, ENV13, ENV17, ENV41-43, TR10,
OR4/0OR4.1 and H14.

It is therefore considered that subject to compliance with the attached conditions, and
taking into account all other material planning considerations, including the provisions
of the development plan, the proposal would be acceptable. This also includes a
consideration of whether the decision to grant permission is compatible with the
Human Rights Act 1998.

INFORMATIVE - Your attention is specifically drawn to the conditions marked *.
These condition(s) require the submission of details, information, drawings etc. to the
Local Planning Authority BEFORE WORKS START ON SITE or, require works to be
carried out BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF USE OR FIRST OCCUPATION OF ANY
BUILDING. Failure to meet these requirements is in contravention of the terms of the
permission and the Council may take enforcement action to secure compliance. As of
April 2008 submissions seeking to discharge conditions or requests for confirmation
that conditions have been complied with must be accompanied by the appropriate fee.

INFORMATIVE - This permission is subject to a planning obligation under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

Pack Page 51
44



10

11

INFORMATIVE - In connection with the requirements of Condition No.16, the
planning permission hereby granted does not authorise the applicant, or his agents, to
construct a new/altered access to, or other work within, the public highway. A
separate consent for works within the highway must first be obtained from the highway
authority who may be contacted at the following address:- Hampshire County Council
Highways Sub Unit, M3 Motorway Compound, Hook, Hampshire, RG27 9AA.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is recommended to achieve maximum energy

efficiency and reduction of Carbon Dioxide emissions by:

a) ensuring the design and materials to be used in the construction of the building
are consistent with these aims; and

b) using renewable energy sources for the production of electricity and heat using
efficient and technologically advanced equipment for the production of
electricity and heat.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised to contact the Recycling and Waste
Management Section at Rushmoor Borough Council on 01252 398164 with regard to
providing bins for refuse and recycling. The bins should be:

1) provided prior to the occupation of the properties;

2) compatible with the Council's collection vehicles, colour scheme and specifications;
3) appropriate for the number of occupants they serve;

4) fit into the development's bin storage facilities.

INFORMATIVE - No materials produced as a result of site preparation, clearance, or
development should be burnt on site. Please contact the Head of Environmental
Health & Housing for advice.

INFORMATIVE - Measures should be taken to prevent mud from vehicles leaving the
site during construction works being deposited on the public highway throughout the
construction period.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised that during the construction phase of the
development measures should be employed to contain and minimise dust emissions,
to prevent their escape from the development site onto adjoining properties. For
further information, please contact the Head of Environmental Health.

INFORMATIVE - It is a legal requirement to notify Thames Water of any proposed
connection to a public sewer. In many parts of its sewerage area, Thames Water
provides separate public sewers for foul water and surface water. Within these areas
a dwelling should have separate connections: a) to the public foul sewer to carry
waste from toilets, sinks and washing machines, etc, and b) to public surface water
sewer for rainwater from roofs and surface drains. Mis-connections can have serious
effects: i) If a foul sewage outlet is connected to a public surface water sewer this
may result in pollution of a watercourse. i) If a surface water outlet is connected to a
public foul sewer, when a separate surface water system or soakaway exists, this may
cause overloading of the public foul sewer at times of heavy rain. This can lead to
sewer flooding of properties within the locality. In both instances it is an offence to
make the wrong connection. Thames Water can help identify the location of the
nearest appropriate public sewer and can be contacted on 0845 850 2777.

INFORMATIVE - In the UK all species of bats are protected under Schedule 5 of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and under Schedule 2 of the

Pack Page 52

45



12

13

14

15

conservation (Natural Habitats & c¢) Regulations 2004. Other species are also subject
to statutory protection. The grant of planning permission does not supersede the
requirements of this legislation and any unauthorised works would constitute an
offence. If bats or signs of bats, or any other protected species, are encountered at
any point during development then all works must stop immediately and local Natural
England office and Rushmoor Borough Council must be informed.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised to follow good practice in the demolition of
the existing building on site including the re-use of all material arising from demolition
as part of the redevelopment wherever practicable. Please contact Les Murrell,
Strategy Co-ordinator (Sustainability) at Rushmoor Borough Council on 01252 398538
for further information.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised that there may be a need to comply with the
requirements of the Party Wall etc Act 1996 before starting works on site. The Party
Wall etc Act is not enforced or administered by the Council but further information can
be obtained from the Chief Building Control Officer.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is requested to bring the conditions attached to this
permission to the attention of all contractors working or delivering to the site, in
particular any relating to the permitted hours of construction and demolition; and
where practicable to have these conditions on display at the site entrance(s) for the
duration of the works.

INFORMATIVE - The Local Planning Authority's commitment to working with the
applicants in a positive and proactive way is demonstrated by its offer of pre-
application discussion to all, free of charge, and assistance in the validation and
determination of applications through the provision of clear guidance regarding
necessary supporting information or amendments both before and after submission, in
line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Pack Page 53
46






TR L TOTE Y 0 B TG DY
308 O COIHD 38 0L ENCIEIAIT 03TVDE 38 0L 10W
I TSI LHOIMAIOD o SLOSIMOMY T

ev@oozL| 2ud

a0z e
_ i sty aor -
[ . g Yo *
B N 1An00 BLES
Qv B} WU e
oken ang Bunea e
WBnoxoquiey e .
PEOY 9100 281 . 2
Hd Sy SI800d JWIC ] a0t 2 weo seusiy
wawdojaneq [EjuspIsay pasodoly )
— TN
T — J .
— .
< duios
: 3 oa'ag
woompompreoyme g S1331IHOHY - =
[rstemanr. s S
ecesszaezD WL o
%
[ ; ) 5L N
el )" [ | i 7 .
90010 | BuigEduRl 9TGT ebpu’ N
3ok AopaUTT o
e
- - —— oio - 3
gor avae www bd sa0e 5083 a
HL s based Sn Zhd B PE
g, 4
5990004 [ E
o s
[ Suryosg
£

HALLY ANI 5

¥y
€
d

opdd

W4 MO L LN LSOO W v 6 O 61 NV S |

S3LON TYNID

S3ALON

Ty
69 || o
Taios
9
;
sume
pous
AN
aue o Xy
P 3 5080
el ® &
5 o
e o
< P
&
<
ouelth

Pack Page 55

N
_. Sras
abpu
%,
o,
o
N
‘ N <]
i, ¥
&
™y
- 25 NG,
suos
0L
sucis &
o
=
Y
Ca
o



SESOES ALY T 00T 5 WG ORI
245 O GOAHOI0 0L SHOISHANA TT¥I5 30 1 LN
510 GANMISI LOWAICD 0 SITILWONY W

ev@oort| Eid 9ZLAIOT PL
- —

S1 udy 890
- v

- a..a!_! E..!L

‘suogess(3 § sue|d Bupspy

Bnoioquies
pEOY %00 281

Hd Sy S:3110d 100§
wauido(andg] [BUIRIEAY Pascdoig

wos woapyiead mve aapy, S1DILIHOHY
woa SR e

Ecesszaicz) L
puefug amsduey o
fyr—
92010, Gy 6757
BEN0H SumOpEUET]

aor amvma S0 Zhd

HL vomsung umung  §1 712 Ehd

we  wp  owg  wz w0

[ ——
8[eas 00k L

uonens|3 1se3 Bunsix3y

N¥d LNIW3svd

uoners(3 ysap Bunsixg

J00|4 J5i14 Buisxg

uolieAs|3 yuoN Bunsixg

ield Joold Bunsix3

]

o

|

J00|4 punoJg Busixg

J
Zons

tifegid |z

Pack Page 56

49



oSN
345 M0 ODOIE 38 OLSHONINIC “0F VIS 38 0% LON
SUZ CUAMISEY ISNAI00 O SLOMMOWY e

~<08«—_ 0zd _ 0ZVBI0Z YL
el s R

aor

_ _m.a<
| w0 | s

nofe) ayis pasodoid

S

worspayyEc i qop LD ILINDEY
WooSAUDIESTUIPE TRND

sceonszetozn)  er [
puetuz anscuey (0 Y
402 10d nowsiog (8
SRR BINTOUSH 9257
‘s8noy eumopsue

iy g

v v oo o

.,
HL =]

HL -
sor )

Bupr oo $

(00z:101B9S) NV 1d 400d / ALIS 3SOdO¥d

“$52|5 PAINISG0 i SMODUA SHEIPU| e

(001:1 @Ie0s) STIv.L3a /

3H01S 3T0AD / NIF
po— %
wE) MU 2
i e
i}

wg o wy  wg wg w0

[ — — ]
8leas 0041

(001:1 @[e2S) STIVL3a
AININLYIHL AYVANNOS

45 01 30 04 Y AV S5 NO GIVSIN 5 WRLALWA NO XU T 3

Pack Page 57

50



B TOTH0 AW DR
U5 N0 (MO0 38 0L SO 03T¥S 34 01 LON
G CANANISIN INORIAA0D O SLOLMONY I

w@ooii| sd 7 cziRlozhl
_ _ ot sy aor
[, [ g e

1 S0
SUOGENS|3 § SUBId Pasadold

UBnooguE

pEoY anod Zal

Hd Suity sispod sauwsog

wawdosnaq [enuspisay pesodold
-

wospapEEdaes g SLOILIKOEY
wos spampeydBuREe T3

E5E 554 26 (€200 toL
e ey # _

40 10d Yinowspog

i oI 6252

“ssnay swncpsi

wg o ow owg  wz w0

2128 00L:L

| [avan]

M@%

‘58|65 paInosqo iim smapuim s paxy sapeaipul ()

“sse1D PaINDSgo Wim SmOpU SIlEIIPY| e
B

“Adoues yaiod de (G)

5pooB smemuies oadn woerg ()

spiecqabeq pue Ies ‘ense) DAL apUn @

5009 pUE SmopUM IALN S (Z)

s Asuump gyo (1)

axcde v o1 5293 joar iouod Buppopsiu uwoig / pey (D)

‘fenaidde v of sopuai pasued ot (8)

‘leacidde ] o) ywvpuq Suse) wwoig [ poy (8)
TR RS

NOILYATTI 1S3M a350d0¥d

NOILYA3T3 1SY3 03S0d0dd

o

NY1d Y0014 18HI4 3S0d0dd

NOILYATT3 HLIYON d3S0d0dd

NYd J00Y 03S0d0dd

_ ‘
- wonke_ F e

H

H

o

L] Bug

E 1Buan

51

R 5 5 5 5 I

0

H M FH HaHE

@

S

i

Pack Page 58



SHOd VIO VROT W0 SRS
2SN (340340 30 01 NDSKIAMD OIS HOLION
SUT ENESIY HDRIAIDD @ SI03LEDMWIM

vBoort| Eld FZLBLOZ L

me| vom wtemn

_ _ 51y aor
o es| o peena | am—n

LG 80/d
suogers3 § suEd pesadald

NOILYAZT LS3IM 03S040Hd

NOILYATT3 LSV3 03S0d0¥d

ubnosoquse 4

peoy 9n00 Z8L

Hdl Sy S:900d S04

weurojeraq (EjuUspsey pasodaig
s

wormoappmad e g S103LIHOAY
WO BIRNAEHSDUILDE Er

eecosszelezn)l  mL
pue 3 i wep

407 10d nawsuey
omie sisduey 657
w800} uMIPIUE]

LN

NY Id HUU 14 15814 ud50d0dd

NOILYAZTI HLYON d3S0d0dd

]

sl

i

NY1d J00d d380d0dd

NY Id U0 14 UNIUEY Udsudusd

NOILYATTI HLNOS 03S0d08d

i 0 Y 8

I e FH FH | °H HH

5

Pack Page 59

52



THO oW NV 1d 400¥ 0380d0¥d
U NO GAIHOF 04 SHOISNING CHTVIS 36 O1 JON
.

12 AIANISTY DOWAKD 3 SLOTUNOMY O

NOILVA3T3 LS3IM 03S0d0dd NOILYA3T3 1SVY3 03S0d0o¥d
v ® ool __ €d _ 21810791
= o | *H W —— 0
Q—.ﬂc_k | ﬂ m _
suogensiz g sued pasodald ]
= _, < nEm

vaoxgoo«q. 7
Hd Sy SN0 Jawio 4
wawdoanag (equapisay pasodald

[ ]

woospayuied mwn e SIDILIHDYY
WoO MIAMARAADUPT PO

ceeosL e (20 w1

pumBu3 aimsdusy

402 40d Winowskod
00610, USSR 95T
‘@snoy oumcpsie

8or aivaNe S0@ Zid

HL wommus bawng ST L S

w w o w ow w0 NY1d 4004 ANNOYO a3S0d0o¥d
e NY1d 40074 1S¥I4 A3S0d0¥d ' R ) -

2e2s 001:L

NY1d LN3W3Sv8

]

frit

Wl

—

“SIEA PINOWRY
swem pesodold
siem Bunsixa T
= | 7

NOILYA3T13 HLYON d3S0d0dd
3p00f Jemures oAdn era (2

53

“kdoues yaiod guo (9
spI0qaBiea pue 1jos ‘erase; sequi potvred (5
s100p pue smopuv IAdN awum () |
3L

Jeroxdde 1] 03 Bupsoce yoiew o} sam joos Aer (E) —

Tenosdde v 1 0) Buiisixa watews o) sopua paiured ()

“Tenosdde v o} Burisixa yojew o) yiowyouq bupes (1)

SCHAD SLVITINGD

el
el

Pack Page 60



Development Management Committee Item 11
22nd June 2016 Report No.PLN1620
Section C

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the
date of preparation, which is more than two weeks in advance of the Committee meeting.
Because of these time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the
final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comment. Any changes or necessary
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

Case Officer David Stevens
Application No. 16/00331/FULPP
Date Valid 28th April 2016
Expiry date of 20th May 2016

consultations

Proposal Erection of pair of 4-bedroom semi-detached houses following
demolition of existing dwellinghouse

Address 65 North Lane Aldershot
Ward North Town

Applicant Ayyaz Homes Limited
Agent C Foo Associates Limited
Recommendation GRANT

Description & Relevant History

No.65 North Lane is a detached 2-3 bedroom house on a plot measuring approximately 16
metres wide by 37 metres deep (592 square metres or approximately 0.06 hectares). It is on
the west side of North Lane opposite the light-industrial units at Pegasus Court. To the
immediate south is Nos.61-63 North Lane, which is the former British Legion Hall, now used
as a Dance School. To the north is No.67 North Lane, a detached house. Semi-detached
houses occupy the plots at Nos.1 & 3 Calvert Close and share the rear boundary of the site
to the west.

Planning permission (13/00479/FUL) was refused by the Development Management
Committee in November 2013 for a scheme involving the demolition of existing detached
house and erection of four 3 bedroom back-to-back houses with associated access and car
parking for the following reasons:-

“1 The proposed development, by reason of the restricted size of the plot, the footprint of
the proposed building, the design of the proposed development and the introduction of
vehicle parking and manoeuvring to the rear of the plot, would be an unacceptably
cramped, poorly contrived and incongruous form of development which would relate
poorly and unsympathetically to its surroundings. The proposal would therefore
constitute an unacceptable overdevelopment of the site contrary to the provisions of
Rushmoor Core Strategy Policies CP1 and CP2 and saved Local Plan Policy ENV17;

Pack Page 61
54



and the Council's adopted "Housing Density and Design” and "Sustainable Design
and Construction” Supplementary Planning Documents, both adopted in April 2006.

2 The introduction of parking and manoeuvring areas in proximity to the rear garden
boundaries of neighbouring residential properties would give rise to material and
harmful loss of the amenity to occupiers as a result of the noise, activity and
disturbance of vehicle movements. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies CP1
and CP2 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy adopted October 2011 and saved Local Plan
Policy ENV17; and the Council's adopted "Housing Density and Design" and
"Sustainable Design and Construction" Supplementary Planning Documents adopted
in April 2006.

3 The proposed development would fail to provide an adequate living environment for
potential future occupiers contrary to the provisions of Rushmoor Core Strategy
Policies CP1 and CP2 and saved Local Plan Policies ENV17 and H14.

4 The proposal fails to make provision for an appropriate Special Protection Area
Mitigation and Avoidance contribution towards the Rowhill Copse suitable accessible
natural green space, or strategic access management measures in order to address
the impact of the proposed development upon the nature conservation interest and
objectives of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area. The proposal is
thereby contrary to the requirements of Policies CP13 and CP15 of the Rushmoor
Core Strategy adopted October 2011.

5 The proposals do not make provision for an appropriate Transport Contribution to
address the impact of the proposed development on local highways infrastructure as
required by Policies CP16 and CP17 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy adopted October
2011 and saved Local Plan Policy TR10; and the Council's adopted "Planning
Contributions : Transport" Supplementary Planning Document, April 2008.

6 The proposals do not make provision for public open space in accordance with the
requirements of Policies CP11 and CP12 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy adopted
October 2011, saved Local Plan Policies OR4 and OR4.1; and the Council's
continuing Interim Advice Note (dated August 2000 and updated July 2006) "Financial
Contributions towards Provision of Open Space in Association with New Housing
Development".”

This decision was the subject of an unsuccessful appeal which was dismissed in February
2015. A copy of the appeal decision is attached at the end of this report. Whilst the Inspector
did not agree with all of the Council’s concerns, he was concerned that the considerable
depth of the proposed building in the appeal scheme (because it would comprise back-to-
back house units) would be uncharacteristic and therefore out of keeping with the area. He
found that the visual harm in this respect would be exacerbated by the incongruous design of
the proposed building incorporating a central archway to serve a parking area to the rear of
the site. In terms of the living environment created, the Inspector was also concerned about
the front-facing dwellings having remotely located amenity space to the rear of the building.
This was a particular point of concern to the Inspector given the appellant's argument that
the proposed development was targeted at first-time buyers probably with young families.
The Inspector agreed that that appeal scheme must address its impact upon the nature
conservation interests and objectives of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area.

The current proposal is for the demolition of the existing detached house and the erection of
a pair of 4-bedroom semi-detached houses. These would be of two-storey height, with

Pack Page 62
55



accommodation in the roof space. The houses would front road; and would be set back a
minimum of approximately 8 metres from the front boundary. The footprint would be
approximately 12.4 metres wide by 12.2 metres deep. It would have a transverse ridged
gable-ended roof reaching a maximum height of 8 metres at the ridge and 5 metres at eaves.
The area to the front would provide a central vehicular entrance serving a parking and
manoeuvering forecourt with a total of 6 on-site parking spaces: three to each side of the
site.

Each dwelling would be provided with a private rear garden of at least 15 metres in depth.
The gardens would contain a shed for cycle and domestic storage. Bin storage would be
provided at the side of each house. A communal bin collection area adjoining the road
frontage is identified.

The application is supported by a Design & Access Statement, a Preliminary Bat Survey,
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, and Flood Risk Assessment.

The applicants have completed a s106 Planning Obligation in the form of a Unilateral
Undertaking securing financial contributions for Special Protection Area Mitigation &
Avoidance; and also a Transport Contribution.

Consultee Responses
Environmental Health No objections subject to condition and informatives.

Parks Development Officer No objections : no Public Open Space contribution can be
required in this case due to s106 'Pooling Restrictions'.

Community - Contracts No objections.
Manager

Transportation Strategy Officer No highways objections subject to a Transport Contribution
of £5457 being secured.

Conservation Team No objections : The site is not located within a Conservation
Area and, despite previous suggestions, the existing building
is neither designated as a heritage asset; nor of sufficient
interest to be considered as such.

Thames Water No objections.

Natural England No comments received, but raises no objections to such
proposals as Standing Advice provided that an appropriate
financial contribution for Special protection Area Mitigation
and Avoidance is secured with a s106 Planning Obligation.

Hampshire Fire & Rescue No objections, but provides generic fire safety advice.
Service

Neighbours notified

Pack Page 63
56



In addition to posting a site notice and press advertisement, 11 individual letters of
notification were sent to properties in North Lane (including Pegasus Court), Friend Avenue
and Calvert Close, including all properties adjoining the application site.

Neighbour comments

One response, from the occupier of 1 Calvert Close supports the proposal stating it is a
much more appealing development of the plot than previous plans and in line with the
houses currently in the local area. Pleased to see that there will be no dormer windows
overlooking neighbouring properties (plans show Velux windows) and sufficient parking
provided at the front of the properties. Concern expressed regarding potential to create
additional bedrooms.

Policy and determining issues

The site is located within the built-up area of Aldershot. It is not in a Conservation Area, or
adjoining a Listed Building. Rushmoor Core Strategy Policies CP1 (Sustainable Development
Principles), CP2 (Design and Heritage), CP3 (Renewable Energy and Sustainable
Construction), CP4 (Surface Water Flooding), CP5 (Meeting Housing Needs and Housing
Mix), CP10 (Infrastructure Provision), CP11 (Green Infrastructure Network), CP12 (Open
Space, Sport and Recreation), CP13 (Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area), CP15
(Biodiversity), CP16 (Reducing and Managing Travel Demand) and CP17 (Investing in
Transport) are relevant to the consideration of the current proposals.

A number of Local Plan policies continue to be 'saved' and therefore remain in use for the
time being until they are replaced by future tranches of Local Development Framework
documents. In this respect, Local Plan Policies ENV13 (trees), ENV17 (general development
criteria), H14 (amenity space), ENV41-43 (flood risk), ENV48 (environmental pollution &
noise) and OR4/OR4.1 are 'saved' policies that remain relevant to the consideration of this
application.

Also relevant are the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)
"Housing Density and Design" and "Sustainable Design and Construction" both adopted in
April 2006; and 'Parking Standards' and 'Transport Contributions' both adopted in April 2008.
Since these documents were subject to extensive public consultation and consequent
amendment before being adopted by the Council, some significant weight can be attached to
the requirements of these documents. The advice contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) is also relevant.

The 2015 appeal decision refusing planning permission for a re-development scheme is an
important material consideration in this case. Indeed, it is clear that the Inspector did not
have any concerns with some of the planning determining issues raised by the Council and
local residents previously. Nevertheless, it is necessary to take into account the Inspector’s
views and to consider whether or not the current scheme adequately addresses those
concerns that did result in the dismissal of the appeal. Indeed, whether or not there have
been any material changes in relevant planning circumstances that could affect the decision
to be made now. In this context, the key considerations are considered to be:

1. The Principle of development;

2. Design and Visual Impact, including impact on trees;
3. Impact on Neighbours;

4. The Living Environment Provided;

5. Highways Considerations;

Pack Page 64
57



6. Impact on Wildlife;

7. Drainage Issues;

8. Renewable Energy and Sustainability; and
9. Public Open Space.

Commentary
1. Principle of the development -

The proposed development seeks to make more efficient use of an existing residential
property. Within reason this continues to be a clear objective of both Government planning
guidance and local planning policy. This approach is also acknowledged in the Council's.
Supplementary Planning Document "Housing Density and Design" published in April 2006.

Although it has previously been suggested that the existing house is of significant historic
interest and should be preserved, subsequent inspection of the property by the Conservation
Officer revealed this suggestion to be incorrect. This concern has not been raised with the
current application.

The current scheme proposes additional development at the site to provide two dwelling
units. Core Strategy Policy CP6 requires provision of 35% affordable housing with
developments of 15 or more net dwellings. However, as the scheme proposes a total of two
dwelling units (and a net increase of just one unit), the requirements of this policy are not
applicable.

Having regard to both national and local policy, it is considered that there is no objection in
principle to the proposed development subject to the proposals being found acceptable in
respect of usual development control issues.

2. Design and Visual Impact including Impact on Trees -

The site is within the built-up area, where residential development is considered to be
acceptable provided that it is appropriate to the character of the area and satisfies the
relevant policies of the Development Plan. Policy CP2 — Design and Heritage — states that
development proposals will be permitted where they include high quality design that respects
the character and appearance of the local area. Additional support for this approach is
provided by the NPPF.

The appeal Inspector noted that the prevailing visual character of the area in the vicinity of
the application site is of mixed appearance, style and design. Furthermore, he noted that
there were numerous examples of front garden areas in the vicinity being entirely hard-
surfaced and used for vehicle parking; and for a notable number of existing dwellings to be
terraced and, as such, for these buildings to fill the entire width of their plots. It is considered
that the current proposed development is for an entirely conventional form of development
that would fit in with the identified established character of the area. The concerns about the
design and impact of the previous appeal scheme are resolved by proposing a form of
development that is in keeping with the area. External materials and landscaping can be
controlled by conditions in the event that planning permission is approved. On this basis, it is
considered that the current proposed development would both reflect the existing character
of the area and would also integrate sympathetically into its surroundings.

Although there were previously some trees on this site, these were not covered by a Tree
Preservation Order (TPO) and were removed by the applicant. Although there are some

Pack Page 65
58



trees adjoining, but outside, the application site, none are subject to a TPO. An Arboricultural
Impact Assessment has been submitted with the application setting out tree protection
measures in this respect. The Council’s Arboricultural Officer considers this to be
satisfactory. Accordingly, provided that adequate tree protection measures and construction
methods are used as specified in the submitted AIA, it is considered that no conflict with
saved Local Plan Policy ENV13 would arise.

It is considered that the proposals would be acceptable in visual terms.
3. Impact on neighbours -

The Inspector did not consider concerns regarding noise and disturbance arising from the
provision of some parking to the rear of the site with the appeal scheme were sufficient to
cause material harm to the amenities of any neighbours. Similarly, he did not consider that
any neighbours would be materially impacted by the appeal scheme in respect of
overlooking, loss of light, visual intrusion etc. Indeed, the relationships with all neighbours
arising from the 2015 appeal scheme were considered to be conventional and acceptable.

The application site abuts existing residential properties to the rear (west) and north side. In
this respect, it is considered that the relationships resulting from the current proposals are a
distinct improvement over those with the appeal scheme and would give rise to no undue
impacts on the amenity or privacy of neighbours. Government publications on housing estate
design consider that a 20 metre building to building separation with only a 1.8 metre high
boundary fence in-between is adequate in terms of both providing mutual privacy and also
adequate retention of daylight and sunlight. To the west, Nos.1 and 3 Calvert Close would be
separated from the rear of the proposed dwellings by in excess of 30m. Accordingly, the
relationships of the proposed development with Nos.1 and 3 Calvert Close is considered to
be acceptable in planning terms.

Although the proposed building would project rearwards into the site level with a single-
storey rear extension to No.67 North Lane, it is considered that the relationship with this
neighbour would also be acceptable in planning terms. Whilst this neighbour has windows in
the side elevation of their house that would be affected by the proposed building, these
windows are either secondary windows and/or do not serve main living rooms. The appeal
Inspector considered the impact of the deeper building of the appeal scheme on this
neighbour to be acceptable in planning terms. Although a pair of ground floor windows
serving as a secondary lounge and kitchen windows, together with a first floor bathroom
window that would be obscurely-glazed, would be located in the corresponding side elevation
of the nearest proposed house, it is not considered that any material and undue loss of
privacy due to overlooking of this neighbour would arise.

To the south the property adjoins the side boundary of the Dance School using the former
British Legion Hall at 61-63 North Lane. It is considered that no material and undue impacts
on this neighbour would arise as a result of the proposed development.

The next nearest neighbours to the application site, but not directly adjoining, at Nos.5
Calvert Close and 52 Friend Avenue are located further away from the proposed
development than the adjoining neighbours already mentioned. Therefore it is considered
that no material and harmful impacts to their occupiers would arise.

It is considered that the current proposed development would have relationships with all
neighbours that are acceptable in planning terms.

Pack Page 66
59



4. The Living Environment Provided -

Although the internal layout of a development is generally solely a functional matter between
a developer and his customers and is to some extent covered by the Building Regulations, it
is considered that the proposals are for four-bedroom houses with reasonable internal
accommodation and, in clear contrast to the appeal scheme, the provision of adequate
conventional private rear gardens. This is a different form of development from the back-to-
back houses proposed with the 2015 appeal scheme, where the Inspector had specific
concerns about the amenities that would be provided for the front-facing units on account of
the remote amenity space. It is therefore considered that the living environment of potential
occupiers for the current scheme would be acceptable in planning terms.

5. Highways considerations -

The Inspector did not consider that the appeal scheme, comprising 4 dwelling units, would
cause unacceptable traffic movements or pollution.

The vehicular entrance is considered to be acceptable in terms of dimensions, sight-lines
and geometry and would replace an existing crossover for the property on the north side of
the plot frontage. Adequate space would be provided on site for vehicles to turn and leave in
forward gear. In the overall context of the traffic volumes using North Lane, the Council’s
Transportation Strategy Officer does not consider that the use of the proposed vehicular
entrance would give rise to any material harm to the safety and convenience of highway
users on North Lane. In this respect, the nearby central traffic island and hatched white lines
do not give rise to any highway safety concerns. In terms of parking provision, the proposed
development provides on-site car parking which accords with the Council's adopted parking
standards in full : three spaces per dwelling unit. The bin storage arrangements are also
considered to be acceptable: they would be stored within the curtilage of each of the
individual units and brought out to the frontage for collection days. This arrangement
matches that of many existing properties in the vicinity.

The applicants are aware of the need to make a financial contribution in accordance with the
Council's Transport Contributions SPD. In this case, this would be £14,980 towards
improvements to bus services on North Lane as identified in the Council’'s Transport
Improvements List. In this respect the necessary s106 Planning Obligation in the form of a
Unilateral Undertaking has been completed to secure the required Transport Contribution. As
a result it is considered that the proposals are acceptable in highways terms.

6. Impact on Wildlife -

The Rushmoor Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Interim Avoidance and
Mitigation Strategy is now in place. This comprises two elements. Firstly the maintenance of
Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) at Hawley Meadows in order to divert
additional recreational pressure away from the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area (TBHSPA) and secondly the maintenance of a range of Strategic Access Management
and Monitoring Measures to avoid displacing visitors from one part of the TBHSPA to
another and to minimize the impact of visitors on the TBHSPA. The proposal meets the
criteria against which requests to allocate capacity at the Hawley Meadows SANG will be
considered. A financial contribution of £8,217.00 is required in this case. Natural England
raises no objection to proposals for new residential development in the form of Standing
Advice provided that it is in accordance with the above strategy. The applicants have
submitted a completed s106 Planning Obligation in the form of a Unilateral Undertaking to
secure the required financial contribution. Accordingly, it is considered that the proposals are

Pack Page 67
60



in compliance with the requirements of Core Strategy Policies CP11 and CP13.

A Bat Survey report was submitted with the previous application the subject of the dismissed
appeal. This indicated that there is no evidence of any significant nature conservation
interest existing or likely to exist at the application site that would be affected by the
proposed development. Specifically, it was considered that there were limited opportunities
for bat roosting within the existing building to be demolished. The applicants submit that the
situation has not changed since then and, indeed, the site has been subject to the clearance
of trees and other foliage that existed when the Survey was undertaken, leaving even less
opportunity for protected wildlife species to visit or reside at the application site.
Nevertheless, the survey was undertaken almost 3 years ago and many protected species
such as bats are highly mobile, such that the applicants acknowledge that a further survey
would be required prior to demolition works commencing. It is considered appropriate to deal
with this matter using a planning condition.

7. Drainage Issues -

Core Strategy Policy CP4 requires all new buildings and the development of car parking and
hard standings to incorporate Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS). Although no specific
details are provided, the applicants have indicated that surface water drainage would be
dealt with on site. Accordingly, it is considered appropriate to deal with this matter through
the imposition of a condition requiring the submission of details of the system to be installed
and how this would be maintained. The site is located mainly within Flood Zone 1, which is
land at the lowest risk of flooding, although the part of the site to the front of the proposed
building is just within the outer margin of Flood Zone 2, land at intermediate risk of flooding.
As a result, the application is accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment indicating measures
to be taken to protect the development from the possibility of flooding. Furthermore, it is
demonstrated that the proposed development would not put adjoining land at increased risk
of flooding. The Environment Agency raise no objections as standing advice in such
circumstances.

8. Renewable Energy and Sustainability -

Policy CP3 requires applicants to demonstrate how they have incorporated sustainable
construction standards and techniques into their development. The current proposals are
accompanied by a Sustainability Questionnaire in order to do this. Nevertheless, following
the Royal Assent of the Deregulation Bill 2015 (on 26 March 2015) the government's current
policy position is that planning permissions should no longer be granted requiring or subject
to conditions requiring compliance with any technical housing standards such as the Code
for Sustainable Homes. This is other than for those areas (such as Rushmoor) where
Councils have extant policies referring to the attainment of such standards. In the case of
Rushmoor this means that the Council can require energy performance in accordance with
Code Level 4 as set out in policy CP3 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy. Such measures may
be secured by way of condition and on this basis no objection is raised to the proposal in
terms of Policy CP3.

9. Public open space -

The Local Plan seeks to ensure that adequate public open space provision is made to cater
for future residents in connection with new residential developments. Core Strategy Policy
CP10 and saved Local Plan Policies OR4 and OR4.1 allow provision to be made on the site,
or in appropriate circumstances, a contribution to be made towards upgrading facilities
nearby. The policy does not set a threshold of a particular number of dwellings or size of site

Pack Page 68
61



above which the provision is required. However, in this case, the site is not big enough to
accommodate anything other than the development proposed and any associated
garden/private amenity space. It would, therefore, be usual for the Council to seek a financial
contribution towards the improvement of existing public open space in the vicinity. However,
the recent Court of Appeal decision and corresponding changes in Government Planning
Practice Guidance relating to s106 contributions, it is no longer possible for the Council to
seek a Public Open Space contribution for schemes of 10 dwelling units or fewer. In any
event, s106 ‘Pooling Restrictions’ already preclude seeking a Public Open Space
contribution in this case. Accordingly, in this case it is considered that a Public Open Space
contribution cannot be justified.

Conclusions -

It is considered that the current scheme is significantly different in scale, design and impact
from that the subject of the dismissed 2015 appeal scheme and has satisfactorily addressed
the issues that resulted in the dismissal of that appeal. The proposal is acceptable in
principle, would have no material and harmful impact upon the visual character and
appearance of the area, have no material and adverse impact on neighbours, would provide
an acceptable living environment, and, on the basis of an appropriate Transport Contribution
being secured, are acceptable in highway terms. On the basis of the provision of a
contribution towards the Hawley Meadows SPA mitigation and avoidance scheme, the
proposals are considered to have no significant impact upon the nature conservation interest
and objectives of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area. The proposals are
thereby considered acceptable having regard to Policies SS1, CP1, CP2, CP5, CP10, CP11,
CP12, CP13, CP15, CP16, and CP17 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and saved Local Plan
Policies ENV13, ENV17, ENV41-43, TR10, OR4/OR4.1 and H14.

FULL RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions
and informatives:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of one year
from the date of this permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, to reflect
the objectives of the Council's Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy as amended July 2014 and to accord with the
resolution of Rushmoor's Cabinet on 17 June 2014 in respect of Planning Report no
PLN1420.

2 The permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved drawings — C Foo Associates Drawing Nos. 1418 PX-01; -EP-00; -EP-01; -
EP-02; -EE-01; - EX-01; -PP-01; -PP-02; -PP-03; -PP-04; -PE-01; -PE-02; and -PD-
01.

Reason - To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission granted.

3 The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with the
external materials, surfacing materials, boundary enclosures, landscaping scheme,
bin storage, cycle storage, surface water drainage, and levels details submitted with

Pack Page 69
62



the application and hereby approved. The development shall be completed in full
accordance with the details so approved before any part of the development is
occupied and the retained thereafter at all times.

Reason - To ensure satisfactory external appearance, satisfactory on-site surface
water drainage arrangements and to generally ensure a satisfactory development of
the site.

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development Order) 2015, no development falling within Classes, A, B, C, D and E of
Part 1 of Schedule 2 shall be carried out without the prior permission of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and to
prevent adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the vicinity.

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development Order) 2015, (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order), no
additional windows, doors or openings of any kind shall be inserted in the side
elevations or roofspace of the development hereby permitted without the prior
permission of the Local Planning Authority. Furthermore, there shall be no alteration of
the positions of the windows shown to be provided on the plans hereby approved.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring properties.

6 Construction or demolition work of any sort within the area covered by the application
shall only take place between the hours of 0800-1800 on Monday to Fridays and
0800-1300 on Saturdays. No work at all shall take place on Sundays and Bank or
Statutory Holidays.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and to
prevent adverse impact on traffic and parking conditions in the vicinity.

7 All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall
be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of the
buildings or the practical completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and
any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless
otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - In the interests of amenity and to help achieve a satisfactory standard of
landscaping.

8 The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the off-street parking
facilities shown on the approved plans have been completed and made ready for use
by the occupiers. The parking facilities shall be thereafter retained solely for parking
purposes (to be used by the occupiers of, and visitors to, the development as
indicated on the approved plans). For the avoidance of doubt the parking spaces shall
not be used for the parking or storage of boats, caravans or trailers. *

Reason - To ensure the provision and availability of adequate off-street parking.

Pack Page 70
63



10

11

12

13

14

15

Provision shall be made for services to be placed underground. No overhead wire or
cables or other form of overhead servicing shall be placed over or used in the
development of the application site.

Reason - In the interests of visual amenity.

No other works shall be commenced on site until the proposed improvements to the
vehicular access to the site have been implemented in full as shown on the plans
hereby approved. The works so undertaken shall be retained thereafter at all times.

Reason — In the interests of the safety and convenience of highway users.

No works shall start on site until existing trees to be retained adjoining the site have
been adequately protected from damage during site clearance and works, in
accordance with details as set out in the submitted Arboricultural Report submitted
with the application an hereby approved. Furthermore, no materials or plant shall be
stored and no buildings erected within the protective fencing without the prior consent
in writing of the Local Planning Authority. *

Reason - To ensure that existing trees are adequately protected in the interests of the
visual amenities of the site and the locality in general.

In the event that unforeseen ground conditions or materials which suggest potential or
actual contamination are revealed at any time during implementation of the approved
development it must be reported, in writing, immediately to the Local Planning
Authority. A competent person must undertake a risk assessment and assess the
level and extent of the problem and, where necessary, prepare a report identifying
remedial action which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority before the measures are implemented. Following completion of
measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must be
prepared and is subject to approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason - To ensure that the site is safe for the development permitted and in the
interests of amenity and pollution prevention.

Prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby permitted, details of
measures to achieve the energy performance standards in accordance with Code
Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes or equivalent for each of the dwellings
hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Such details as may be approved shall be implemented in full prior to the
first occupation of the dwelling(s) to which they relate and retained in perpetuity.

Reason - To reflect the objectives of Policy CP3 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy.

The proposed windows located in the upper floor side elevations of the houses hereby
permitted shall be fitted with fixed obscure glass (save an opening light that shall be a
minimum of 1.7 metres above finished floor level to be installed prior to the first
occupation of the development and retained thereafter at all times.

Reason - In the interests of amenity and privacy of neighbouring properties. *

No works shall start on site until details of provision for the parking and turning on site
of operatives and construction vehicles during the construction and fitting out works

Pack Page 71
64



have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
the measures so approved shall be implemented throughout the construction period.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties and to
prevent adverse impact on highway conditions in the vicinity.*

16 Prior to the commencement of demolition, an emergence survey shall be undertaken
by a licenced Bat Specialist to determine whether any bats are present at the site and
the results submitted to the Council. If bats are found to be present at the site, no
works shall commence and the applicant shall notify Natural England for advice and
appropriate licencing prior to the commencement of any works at the site. In any
event, during demolition, the tiles on the existing building to be demolished shall be
removed by hand and in the event that any bats are found, works shall cease
immediately and the applicant shall notify Natural England for advice and appropriate
licencing of further works, if appropriate.

Reason - In the interests of the protection of bats.

17 The development hereby permitted shall be implemented and completed in full
accordance with the flood mitigation and resilience measures set out in the Nimbus
Engineering Consultants Flood Risk Assessment submitted with the application and
hereby approved. The measures incorporated into the development in this respect
shall be retained thereafter.

Reason — To ensure that flood resilience is built into the development.
INFORMATIVES

1 INFORMATIVE - REASONS FOR APPROVAL - The Council has granted permission
because:-

It is considered that the current scheme is significantly different in scale, design and
impact from that the subject of the dismissed 2015 appeal scheme and has
satisfactorily addressed those issues that resulted in the dismissal of that appeal. The
proposals are considered to be acceptable in principle, would have no material and
harmful impact upon the visual character and appearance of the area, have no
material and adverse impact on neighbours, would provide an acceptable living
environment, and, on the basis of an appropriate Transport Contribution being
secured, are acceptable in highway terms. On the basis of the provision of a
contribution towards the Hawley Meadows SPA mitigation and avoidance scheme, the
proposals are considered to have no significant impact upon the nature conservation
interest and objectives of the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area. The
proposals are thereby considered acceptable having regard to Policies SS1, CP1,
CP2, CP5, CP10, CP11, CP12, CP13, CP15, CP16, and CP17 of the Rushmoor Core
Strategy and saved Local Plan Policies ENV13, ENV17, ENV41-43, TR10,
OR4/0OR4.1 and H14.

It is therefore considered that subject to compliance with the attached conditions, and
taking into account all other material planning considerations, including the provisions
of the development plan, the proposal would be acceptable. This also includes a
consideration of whether the decision to grant permission is compatible with the
Human Rights Act 1998.

Pack Page 72
65



10

INFORMATIVE - Your attention is specifically drawn to the conditions marked *.
These condition(s) require the submission of details, information, drawings etc. to the
Local Planning Authority BEFORE WORKS START ON SITE or, require works to be
carried out BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF USE OR FIRST OCCUPATION OF ANY
BUILDING. Failure to meet these requirements is in contravention of the terms of the
permission and the Council may take enforcement action to secure compliance. As of
April 2008 submissions seeking to discharge conditions or requests for confirmation
that conditions have been complied with must be accompanied by the appropriate fee.

INFORMATIVE - This permission is subject to a planning obligation under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

INFORMATIVE - In connection with the requirements of Condition No.10, the
planning permission hereby granted does not authorise the applicant, or his agents, to
construct a new/altered access to, or other work within, the public highway. A
separate consent for works within the highway must first be obtained from the highway
authority who may be contacted at the following address:- Hampshire County Council
Highways Sub Unit, M3 Motorway Compound, Hook, Hampshire, RG27 9AA.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is recommended to achieve maximum energy
efficiency and reduction of Carbon Dioxide emissions by:

a) ensuring the design and materials to be used in the construction of the building
are consistent with these aims; and

b) using renewable energy sources for the production of electricity and heat using
efficient and technologically advanced equipment for the production of
electricity and heat.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised to contact the Recycling and Waste
Management Section at Rushmoor Borough Council on 01252 398164 with regard to
providing bins for refuse and recycling. The bins should be:

1) provided prior to the occupation of the properties;

2) compatible with the Council's collection vehicles, colour scheme and specifications;
3) appropriate for the number of occupants they serve;

4) fit into the development's bin storage facilities.

INFORMATIVE - No materials produced as a result of site preparation, clearance, or
development should be burnt on site. Please contact the Head of Environmental
Health & Housing for advice.

INFORMATIVE - Measures should be taken to prevent mud from vehicles leaving the
site during construction works being deposited on the public highway throughout the
construction period.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised that during the construction phase of the
development measures should be employed to contain and minimise dust emissions,
to prevent their escape from the development site onto adjoining properties. For
further information, please contact the Head of Environmental Health.

INFORMATIVE - It is a legal requirement to notify Thames Water of any proposed
connection to a public sewer. In many parts of its sewerage area, Thames Water
provides separate public sewers for foul water and surface water. Within these areas
a dwelling should have separate connections: a) to the public foul sewer to carry

Pack Page 73
66



11

12

13

14

15

waste from toilets, sinks and washing machines, etc, and b) to public surface water
sewer for rainwater from roofs and surface drains. Mis-connections can have serious
effects: i) If a foul sewage outlet is connected to a public surface water sewer this
may result in pollution of a watercourse. ii) If a surface water outlet is connected to a
public foul sewer, when a separate surface water system or soakaway exists, this may
cause overloading of the public foul sewer at times of heavy rain. This can lead to
sewer flooding of properties within the locality. In both instances it is an offence to
make the wrong connection. Thames Water can help identify the location of the
nearest appropriate public sewer and can be contacted on 0845 850 2777.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised that there may be a need to comply with the
requirements of the Party Wall etc Act 1996 before starting works on site. The Party
Wall etc Act is not enforced or administered by the Council but further information can
be obtained from the Chief Building Control Officer.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised to follow good practice in the demolition of
the existing building on site including the re-use of all material arising from demolition
as part of the redevelopment wherever practicable. Please contact Les Murrell,
Strategy Co-ordinator (Sustainability) at Rushmoor Borough Council on 01252 398538
for further information.

INFORMATIVE - In the UK all species of bats are protected under Schedule 5 of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and under Schedule 2 of the
conservation (Natural Habitats & c¢) Regulations 2004. Other species are also subject
to statutory protection. The grant of planning permission does not supersede the
requirements of this legislation and any unauthorised works would constitute an
offence. If bats or signs of bats, or any other protected species, are encountered at
any point during development then all works must stop immediately and local Natural
England office and Rushmoor Borough Council must be informed.

INFORMATIVE - The applicant is requested to bring the conditions attached to this
permission to the attention of all contractors working or delivering to the site, in
particular any relating to the permitted hours of construction and demolition; and
where practicable to have these conditions on display at the site entrance(s) for the
duration of the works.

INFORMATIVE - The Local Planning Authority's commitment to working with the
applicants in a positive and proactive way is demonstrated by its offer of pre-
application discussion to all, free of charge, and assistance in the validation and
determination of applications through the provision of clear guidance regarding
necessary supporting information or amendments both before and after submission, in
line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Pack Page 74

67



Pack Page 75

68



- :uoisiney 1o-dd equinu Buimelg 8i¥h 1equinu qop payuir sewioH zekky el
. Boot: Caun ssavscsN 00220 TN DU
Mo Aqumesg | OHOZOBL -opeq evD oSt 1 oleag SN IS O RSSO 01 no
YO Sy WISLOOP WA 8SLOEND sjueynsuog ubisaq
4OV ZLNO '81ysdweH ‘JoysIap|y ‘SUET YLON G9 P iy e II SPaNoN PaISED I aeq uoisiney | Jod
Je S3SN0Y PaYOEISP-IWSS WOCIPSG-Y X Z JO UO0RIT Pyt bl W] U o
nooloig | mmsle s O W) T SSIEDOSSY

T

,_ | |

\ | ey @ 0G}:} 2/eds - | ebelo)s Zwg + ZWoE)

| : | NYd 40014 ANNOYS A3SOd0O¥d ,

=Ahelo)s £dgpeq ¥
= Spiepugls a0eds Jopun
SEaIe 100]} [euis)ul 55016 Wiy

ZWS| /G -lews)ul sso1b [ejoL

ZW0B'GE = soeds o -
2wk} 99 = Jooj Jsil -
ZWwpL 'Y = 100y punoIo -
T8 PUE ¥-59 SSNOH

'Seale 100} [eUIs)ul 550IB pesodoid

,
[
e vmy e
TR,

o
o siow it

o =25

.
P

T e

e .
Tl g
E—

e Ereass P

S —
I S e s
) w S TR
et ) £ s} feirihid
| et ! amsnmrocs e A

//,.f.s:;u Lo ] o e o0 s o SN WOS .

o B s U -
ot vord)

(oupng mp)
| oo mssng-oied

E.

\ >/ oy

Ao szt

TSN
e

|

punoquyioy i 2

| 84S Jejue 03 punoie| i

\ | wnypue (woop)| |

\ nogepunol o} [aAed, |

I

[~ " Tlesros ook o o ssntus poues swmses

! et i 1 o S
o0 5151 ey T s sar ool
A A

"

eam—
o o uog oz e
Lo ] omwss ma itacons poseor eac Skumtsevos:

| O pepuswwooas

- punog unos
Buganes Buwoou; ||
) premios ¢ ||
|

wpmun
Busumpoeea s

v

EVD 0511 91eoS

Pack Page 76

69



- : oy t0-3d uaquinu Buimelg eivi Lisquinu gor Py sauioH zefky FRTTET )
3 $300055Y 04 001 SN0 L A0D
Mo g umesq | 9H0CTOEE — YD 00k | ‘opeog SMoLANG: 55301 K140
spueynsuc) ubisay
4D ZLND ‘aaysdweH ‘Jousieply ‘BUET YLON 59 san o P Xa a1eq uoisiney | Jon
Je s9snoy payoe}ap-ILUSS WOo0IPSG- X g JO uonoslg 4oslog PONWIT | SOIEI00SSY
" e os

£v ® 0011 81e0s -
. (HLNOS) NOILYAZ13 3aIS 0350d04dd

= 744 REE]

I _.
frs—— 144 144

69-ou Auadoid
Buunogybien

+9'ou Apedoud Buunogyblen

€V ® 00}:| 8Jeds -
(1S¥3) NOILVAT T3 LNON A3SOdOdd

£9°ou Apedoid Buinogybian

=

[]
[]
[ ]

Pack Page 77

70



:uoisiAey

20-3d sdaquinu Buimesq

8i¥l

iaquinu qor 7

ponw sewoH zefky

1juelD

4Mo

:Ag umeaq

91024081 -o1eq

€v @ 00k

3

id

:91eog 7

1 SONOE LHEN¥AL0D

VOS 38 OLAINO

4D¥ ZLNS "2AysAWeH JOUSIBp|Y ‘SUET ULON §9 ia ajeq uoisiney | Joy
Je SaSNOY PAYORIOP-IWAS WO0IPAG- X g JO UoK21T oofoid PalillIT] S8)el0ossy U
S¥ S¢ S¢ Sl S0 oY @
: m— - - - — - - = Rl PRl
(H.LHON) zo_h<>mdmw.n_m_uwﬁm_uuﬁwﬁomn__ﬂzwn_ WoL  We W W/l Wg WS 4 € [4 L 0 '

AIM \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 1@1

mm|

|

—

AEM ||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||| JMu

£9-ou Aadoud BuunogybieN

EV® 0011 81€0S -
(1S3M) NOILYAT 13 ¥YIY AISOdOHd

19'ou Auadoid BuunoquBisn

ﬁm \\\\\\\\ o rrorraiT T 4\&
|
_
|
S 7 2 B 2
MH AH 56 A6
Lo L EO e LDV EL i

Pack Page 78

71



A5% The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 27 January 2015

by R J Marshall LLB DipTP MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 3 February 2015

Appeal Ref: APP/P1750/A/14/2218281
65, North Lane, Aldershot, Hampshire, GU12 4QF

* The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

s The appeal is made by C and S Management Services against the decision of Rushmoor
Borough Council.

s The application Ref 13/00479/FUL, dated 2 July 2013, was refused by notice dated 7
November 2013.

+ The development proposed is "Residential Development. Demolition of existing
detached house and erection of four new 3 bedroom houses”.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Main Issues

2. The main issues in this appeal are: first, the effect of the proposed
development on the character and appearance of the surrounding area;
second, its effect on the living conditions of neighbours; third, whether
satisfactory living conditions would be provided for future occupants of the
proposed development; and fourth, whether an absence of financial
contributions towards Thames Basin Heaths mitigation measures,
transportation and public open space should stand against the proposal.

Reasons
Character and appearance

3. The appeal site lies within an urban area. It is within a ribbon of primarily
residential development fronting onto North Lane. In the vicinity of the site on
the opposite side of North Lane are some recently erected commercial
buildings. The residential development in the vicinity of the site is of mixed
ages, style and design.

4. The house to be demolished on the appeal site is a 2-storey detached dwelling
of no particular noteworthiness. It occupies less of the width of its plot than is
characteristic of houses in the vicinity along North Lane. The proposed
dwellings would be constructed back to back in a single block. This block would
be set back a similar distance from the highway as the existing house.
However, it would occupy almost the full width of the plot and extend much
further back into it. Car parking for 4 cars would be provided at the rear and
access to this area would be via an undercroft in the centre of the building.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Pack Page 79
72



Appeal Decision APP/P1750/A/14/2218281

Additional 4 car parking spaces would be provided forward of the proposed
houses.

I do not share all of the Council's concerns on this issue. I see no harm per-se
in a building of the width proposed, given some fairly lengthy terraced
properties nearby, and of parking at the rear of the site. The gaps between the
side elevations of the building and the site boundary would not be out of
keeping given some dwellings with similar characteristics in the vicinity.
Moreover, given the extensive frontage hardstanding of houses in this length of
North Lane the absence of extensive landscaping forward of the proposed
building would be acceptable.

However, the considerable depth of the proposed building would be notably
uncharacteristic of housing in the area. As such, notwithstanding the lengthy
single-storey community hall to the south of the site, it would appear out of
keeping. Added harm would arise from the odd proportions and design of the
front elevation of the proposed building. It appears to have been designed to
look like a semi-detached house. However, the separation of the proposed 2
bay windows by the wide archway/undercroft leading to the car parking at the
rear is uncharacteristic of such housing and would appear most incongruous.
References were made by the appellant to archways/undercrofts in other the
new residential development in Aldershot. However, these developments are
significantly different in scale and type to that proposed in this instance. They
offer no guide as to the acceptability of the proposal before me.

It is concluded that the proposed development would detract from the
character and appearance of the surrounding area. As such there would be
conflict with Policy CP2 of the Rushmoor Plan Core Strategy (CS) (2011) which
seeks high quality design respecting the character and appearance of the local
area and Policy ENV17 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review 1996-2011 (LP)
(2011) with similar objectives.

Neighbours’ living conditions

8.

The sole concern of the Council on this issue is the impact of the proposed
parking at the rear of the building with reference to noise and disturbance. The
proposed parking spaces would be close to the rear garden boundaries of no.
67, North Lane and nos. 1 and 3 Calvert Close. However, the parking spaces
would be reasonably well removed from the houses themselves. Moreover, with
only 4 parking spaces proposed the amount of traffic manoeuvring and
entering the site would be relatively small. In this urban area this degree of
activity would be insufficient to give rise to unacceptable levels of noise and
disturbance. There is no substantial evidence before me to support local
concerns on the amplifying effect on noise of the proposed undercoft. Nor,
having regard to some neighbours' concerns, would traffic movements
associated with the level of traffic generated cause unacceptable harm through
pollution.

Turning to other concerns locally the degree of separation between the rear
elevation of the proposed building and houses in Calvert Close would be
sufficient to prevent unacceptable harm through loss of privacy, loss of light
and visual impact. The degree of rearward protection of the proposed building
beyond the rear elevation of No. 67 North Lane would not be such as to cause
unacceptable harm through loss of light and visual impact. There would be

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 2

Pack Page 80

73



Appeal Decision APP/P1750/A/14/2218281

some loss of light through a side kitchen window of No. 67. However, this
would not be unacceptable as this is only a secondary window.

10. It is concluded that there would be no unacceptable effect on the living
conditions of neighbours. As such there would be no conflict with CS Policy
CP2 and LP Policy ENV17 which require no demonstrable harm to amenity.

Living conditions of future occupants

11. The Council's concerns on this issue relate to the outlook from the frontage
houses and the provision of garden space for them. On the matter of outlook
the view from these houses would be fairly directly onto a low wall with car
parking beyond. However, this is not uncommon in residential development
and unacceptable living conditions would not thereby arise.

12. However, the Council's concern on the garden space for the frontage houses is
justified. The appellant proposes that rear garden space be provided to the rear
of the proposed building in tandem form. The 2 gardens for the houses at the
rear would abutt the rear elevation of the building. The 2 gardens for the
frontage houses would lie to the back of these gardens. I have two concerns
with this arrangement. First, these gardens will be closely overlooked by first
floor windows in the rearmost houses. Second, these gardens are too far
removed from the frontage houses to be readily used by them and there would
be inadequate surveillance of the gardens from them. This would be of
particular concern given the appellant's acknowledgement that the proposed
development would be targeted at first-time buyers probably with young
families.

13. The appellant has provided a list of developments in Aldershot, some of which
provide only small gardens and some which provide no gardens. However,
limited evidence has been given on the nature or context of these
developments and these references do not justify the poor layout of the
amenity space to be provided.

14. It is concluded that satisfactory living conditions would not be provided for
future occupants of the proposed development. This would conflict with CS
Policy CP2 which requires high quality usable open spaces and LP Policy H14
which has similar objectives.

Financial contributions

15. The appellant says that it is his intention to provide a Unilateral Undertaking
after permission is granted for the contributions sought by the Council.
However, such agreements need to be in place before applications are
determined. This decision must, therefore, be made on the basis of the
contributions sought being absent.

Thames Basin Heaths (TBH)

16. The whole of Rushmoor Berough Council is within 5 km of a Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Area (TBHSPA). It is the Natural England’s (NE) view
that any increase in population in such areas may, through impacting on their
recreational use, be harmful to heathland bird species. Hence Policy CP13 of
the CS says that new development likely to have a significant effect on the
ecological integrity of the TBH SPA, including all new net dwellings, must
demonstrate that adequate measures are in place to avoid or mitigate any

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 3

Pack Page 81
74



Appeal Decision APP/P1750/A/14/2218281

17.

18.

potential adverse effects. The mechanism for delivering this Policy is set out in
the Council's Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance and
Mitigation Strategy and the Thames Basin Heaths Delivery Framework.

The above strategies provide an appropriate mitigation strategy in the form of
the provision of Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGS) and
Strategic Access Management and Monitoring measures (SAMM) on which
developers, of schemes invelving a net increase in housing, are required to
make a financial contribution. NE(s) lack of objection to the proposed
development is contingent on this strategy being complied with.

In light of the above the absence of a TBHSPA contribution must stand against
this application.

Highways/Open space

19.

The Council is seeking a financial contribution of £14,980 on transport
improvements. CS Policies CP16 and CP17 allow for financial contributions to
mitigate the adverse effects of a proposal on the highway network and seek
necessary public transport improvements. This is broadly in line with LP Policy
TP10. The Council is also seeking £7,600 towards off-site open space
provision. However, both contributions sought seem to me to be tariff style
contributions, that is for pooled funding “pots” intended to provide communal
types of infrastructure for the wider area. The Planning Policy Guidance (PPG)
on Obligations says that such contributions should not be sought for
developments, such as this proposal, of 10 units or less. Unlike the THBSPA
contribution they are not required to facilitate development that would
otherwise be unable to proceed due to regulatory or EUC directive
requirements and are thus acceptable.

Conclusion

20.

It is concluded that the absence of financial contributions towards Thames
Basin Heaths mitigation measures should stand against the proposal, but not
the absence of the public open space/transport contributions. There would be
conflict with the development plan Policies referred to above seeking TBHSPA
contributions.

Other matters

Matters in support of proposal

21.

The proposal would provide new housing in an urban area of a kind for which
the appellant says there is a demand. This would accord with the development
plan and the approach in the Framework of seeking to significantly boost the
supply of housing. Jobs would be created in the construction period. However,
such social and economic benefits would not outweigh the environmental and
other harm identified.

Third party concerns against the scheme in addition to those raised by the Council

22.

Regarding concerns to wildlife I am satisfied that a sufficiently comprehensive
bat survey, indicating the presence of bats, was conducted. There is no
substantial evidence to support views on the presence of other protected
species and nothing I saw supported local concerns. Nor in my experience, and
given what I have read and seen, should unacceptable harm arise to

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 4

Pack Page 82

75



Appeal Decision APP/P1750/A/14/2218281

neighbouring trees, light from car headlights, noise from the residential use of
the proposed gardens and highway safety from leaving and entering the site.
Cars parked at the rear of the site would result in no greater fire hazard than in
many other developments. Had I been minded to allow the appeal concerns
over noise during construction works could have been dealt with by condition.
However, lack of harm in these respects does not make the development
acceptable given the harm found on the main issues.

Conclusion

23. There are factors in favour of the proposal and not all of the Council’s case has
been made out. However, the harm identified with regard to the first, third
and fourth issues outweighs these considerations and is decisive in my
decision. The appeal is therefore dismissed.

R J Marshall

INSPECTOR

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 5

Pack Page 83
76



Development Management Committee Item 12
22nd June 2016 Report No.PLN1620
Section C

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the
date of preparation, which is more than two weeks in advance of the Committee meeting.
Because of these time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the
final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comment. Any changes or necessary
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

Case Officer Tara Cowell

Application No. 16/00208/FULPP

Date Valid 19th April 2016

Expiry date of 24th May 2016

consultations

Proposal Partial demolition of existing garage and erection of a single storey
front extension with pitched roof and two, two storey side
extensions

Address 32 The Crescent Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7AS

Ward Knellwood

Applicant Mr L Bartrum

Agent Mr R Bayley

Recommendation GRANT

Description

The property is sited within Farnborough Park on the South side of The Crescent backing on
to Cedar Road. It comprises a rectangular plot of land measuring 37 metres wide by 67
metres deep. The property is a detached house set back 10 metres from the highway with
an attached garage and an in and out driveway. There are gates and a 1.5 metres high brick
wall on the front elevation.

The property has been extended previously with a single storey garage, playroom and
canopy housing an open outdoor area and with a conservatory to the rear and decking
extending across the rear of the house. There is a group of protected trees at the front of the
property.

There is a varied planning history for this site. A double garage and single storey side
extension received permission 1985, a single storey side extension in 1986, a ground floor
and first floor side extension was granted permission in 1990, and the covered outdoor area
was granted permission in 1992.

Planning permission (06/00614/FUL) was refused in October 2006 for erection of two blocks
of six flats with parking to rear following demolition of the existing house and garage. In
January 2007, permission was refused for a revised scheme again proposing a total of 12
flats in two blocks with parking to the rear (06/00781/FUL). An appeal against the first at

Pack Page 84
77



refusal was dismissed in May 2007 and an appeal against the second decision was
withdrawn in July 2007.

The current proposal is to replace the existing single storey element at the east end of the
property with a two storey element. This would replace a garage and playroom with a lounge,
consulting room for the occupier and create two first floor bedrooms. At the west end of the
property a two storey extension with a half hipped end roof would create a first floor bedroom
with a new garage below. Internal alterations would result in the current five bedroom
arrangement being replaced by seven bedrooms with a large first floor reception room,
described as a ‘snug’ on the plans.

Consultee Responses

Transportation Strategy Officer No objection

Aboricultural Officer No object subject to a condition
Neighbours notified

In addition to posting a site notice and press advertisement, 5 individual letters of notification
were sent to properties physically adjoining the site.

Neighbour comments

There have been 11 letters of objection to this application from 7 respondents. The matters
raised are:

Unacceptable size and extension to both side boundaries — Whilst the extended house would
have elements of the flank walls within 700mm of either side of the property, the first floor
element at the eastern end would be set in further giving greater separation from number 36.
The western extension flanks a boundary occupied by a backland property (No.28) which
stands behind no 26 which is also set back behind the application property.

Not in keeping with the area, out of character, terraced effect - The extended building would
be physically separated from adjoining properties, the extensions are of a sympathetic
design and there are varied styles of property in the surrounding area. Materials would match
those of the existing property and it is considered to be acceptable in terms of visual amenity

Overlooking - The roof windows facing the east elevation are secondary windows and can be
specified as obscurely glazed and fixed closed by condition. The roof window in the roof of
the larger extension would face west across the application site and would be 26 metres
away from the opposite boundary. It is not considered the proposal would facilitate harmful
overlooking.

Destabilising adjoin property with excavation — This is not a matter relevant to the
determination of the planning application.

Mass and bulk on the boundary on the boundary with number 36 - The proposed two storey
element would project forward of 36 The Crescent by 3.2 metres and project beyond the rear
by 4.2 metres. Number 36 has a two storey side extension along the boundary with the
application site consisting of a double garage with accommodation above. The siting of
number 32 and the nature and form of the proposed first floor extension is considered to
have a minimal adverse effect in terms of mass and bulk on the boundary.

Pack Page 85
78



Possible commercial use/change of use to flats - The ground floor plan shows a consultation
room which has given rise to concern from neighbours. One of the applicants is a doctor
who treats private patients at the property on occasions. This has never given rise to
complaints and does not constitute a material change of use. A statement from the Doctor
has indicated that there are no plans to turn the property in to a Surgery and that the
consultation room would be used more as an additional family room. If the private practice
increased in intensity to the point that planning permission was required this would be a
matter for separate consideration in that event. No such proposal forms part of the current
application. Similarly the current proposal does not contemplate conversion into flats, and
this is a matter which would be the subject of a separate planning application and
appropriate consultation should it ever be proposed.

Garage door to the rear, possible parking in the rear garden — The new garage would have
front and rear doors maintaining a route of access to the rear garden. The proposal does not
feature rear parking (which in any event would not require planning permission) and the
property has an extensive parking area at the front

Policy and determining issues
The property lies within the built up area in Farnborough.

The Rushmoor Core Strategy was adopted by the Council in October 2011 and, as such, has
replaced the Rushmoor Local Plan Review (1996-2011) as being part of the Development
Plan for the area. To this end Core Strategy Policies CP2 (Design and Heritage) and CP16
(Reducing and Managing Travel Demand) are relevant to the consideration of the current
proposals.

Whilst the Core Strategy introduced new policies replacing specific Local Plan policies, a
number of Local Plan policies continue to be 'saved' and therefore remain in use for the time
being. In this respect, Local Plan Policies ENV 13 (Trees), ENV17 (smaller sites) and H15
(Home extensions) are 'saved' policies that remain relevant to the consideration of this
application.

Also relevant is the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) Car and
Cycle Parking Standards 2012.

Commentary

Taking into consideration the unique designs of the properties within The Crescent, the
proposal is considered to have no adverse visual impact on the appearance of the street
scene or on the character of the area. It is acceptable in amenity, visual and highway safety
terms and has no significant material or harmful impact on neighbours or the protected trees.
The proposal is therefore considered acceptable having regard to policy CP2 and CP16 of
the Rushmoor Core Strategy and "saved" policies ENV 13, ENV17 and H15 of the of the
Rushmoor Local Plan, and the Council's supplementary planning document Car and Cycle
Parking Standards 2012.

Full Recommendation

It is recommended that planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions
and informatives:

Pack Page 86
79



The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

Reason - As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Notwithstanding the details shown on the submitted plans, the two roof windows
facing 36 The Crescent as shown on plan E300/033 REV A shall be obscurely glazed
in their entirety and fixed closed.

Reason - To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties.

No development, including demolition works, shall start on site until the submission of
a satisfactory site specific construction method statement for the low impact
construction of the proposed garage foundation and driveway modification within the
root protection area (RPA) of the protected trees to include a scheme of supervision
by an appropriately qualified arboriculturist to ensure compliance have been submitted
to and approved in writing by The Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
carried out strictly in accordance with the details so approved.

Reason - To ensure the amenity value of the tree(s) and shrubs in the vicinity of the
development is maintained.*

The permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved drawings - E300/001 - E300/002 REV A and E300/003 REV A

Reason - To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission granted

Informatives

INFORMATIVE - The Local Planning Authority’s commitment to working with the
applicants in a positive and proactive way is demonstrated by its offer of pre-
application discussion to all, free of charge, and assistance in the validation and
determination of applications through the provision of clear guidance regarding
necessary supporting information or amendments both before and after submission, in
line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

INFORMATIVE - REASONS FOR APPROVAL - The Council has granted permission
because the proposal is considered to have no adverse visual impact on the
appearance of the street scene or on the character of the area. It is acceptable in
amenity, visual and highway safety terms and has no significant material or harmful
impact on neighbours or the protected trees. The proposal is therefore considered
acceptable having regard to policy CP2 and CP16 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy and
"saved" policies ENV 13, ENV17 and H15 of the of the Rushmoor Local Plan, and the
Council's supplementary planning document Car and Cycle Parking Standards 2012.It
is therefore considered that subject to compliance with the attached conditions, and
taking into account all other material planning considerations, including the provisions
of the development plan, the proposal would be acceptable. This also includes a
consideration of whether the decision to grant permission is compatible with the
Human Rights Act 1998.

Pack Page 87
80



3 INFORMATIVE - The applicant is advised that there may be a need to comply with the
requirements of the Party Wall (etc.) Act 1996 before starting works on site. The Party
Wall (etc.) Act is not enforced or administered by the Council but further information
can be found on the Planning Portal website https://www.gov.uk/guidance/party-wall-
etc-act-1996-guidance and you are able to download The party Wall Act 1996
explanatory booklet.

4 INFORMATIVE - Your attention is specifically drawn to the conditions marked *.
These condition(s) require the submission of details, information, drawings etc. to the
Local Planning Authority BEFORE WORKS START ON SITE or, require works to be
carried out BEFORE COMMENCEMENT OF USE OR FIRST OCCUPATION OF
ANY BUILDING. Development started, carried out or occupied without first meeting
the requirements of these conditions is effectively development carried out WITHOUT
PLANNING PERMISSION. The Council will consider the expediency of taking
enforcement action against any such development and may refer to any such breach
of planning control when responding to local searches. Submissions seeking to
discharge conditions or requests for confirmation that conditions have been complied
with must be accompanied by the appropriate fee.

Pack Page 88
81






100/00€4

SFYLIN
ww_m_._.m__\,_ Tt oseh:k

! ! ! | bt 004:) 6 o € ® 0 0

0l 8 9 14 ¢ L 0

0G¢1-1
NV1d NOILVOOT

W82saID) 8yl Z¢< oy 199loid
'Z€L0E9T JaquinN 89Ud917 "PanIasal spybl IV "9T0Z WBLAdOD umolD (9)

001:1

NV'1d 400714 ANNOYO ONILSIXd ANV NV'1d LIS

IN30S3340 3HL

/
/
\ e
I
|
|
| judiooy
uoisugixg
|
\ |
| . |
\
M
NOILd303d NIHOLI
NOOY
HIOONS JONNOT
AQNLS
AHOLVYAYISNOD
ONIMO3AA

UoISINSY Jaqunp Bumelq
eVYO00ZL D00k 9[eds
§10Z fen ajed
snielg
woo AajAegpreydli@preyail ;3
€91 68T T€8L0 -1
Ad9 YTNO
aliysdweH
ybnoloqu.ie
9[22 Yyd2Inyd vt
P11 sareloossy Aajheg preyory Jsby
SNV1d 40074 ONILSIX3
s|re1aq uoneolddy Buluue|d
3L Bumesq
uoIsualx3 apIS A2101S om |
100014
SV.LvINO
aliysdweH
HONOJOANdV4
1U29saID 3yl 2€
wnJuueg 7N
el
[
/D
,
/ O
,
_
_
_
uw\\,ose aq 0} ajeb vcm\ /
\__ M uapieb bunsixg /
| -
|
|
|
| )
| o
7 ,
/ | |
,
|| S
| juudioo}
/ | UOISUB)XJ
|
||
.
_
9¢ 'ON |

JOVHVO

ALILN

WOOY AVd

9¢€ ON

004}
NV1d 400174 LSHId ONILSIX3
==
[ mll __|
T —— Tan—e S —— R S et S e bbbl leeleedects WA | |
| 3LINSN3 3LNSNI |
m | NOOYQd34 ¢ NOOYd34 € NOOYd34 ¥ NOOYQd34 G NOOYQ34 "_W
| I e e 4 _
| . = (-
i N n | 7
| |
| |
| |
|
|
|
|
| |
|
*
e —
00b:H
NV1d 4004 ONILSIXd
===
“““ R —— - E— - S \\\11_ — 1t
= (= ST —

83

Pack Page 90




UoISIARY Jaquiny Buimesq
YO0zl IVDook oI | | w,m_m_._.m__\,_ | —
510z Ao s , , , ,
0l 8 9 14 00} mv
sneig ' e
NV1d 400714 1SdId d3SOd0odd»
woo AsjAeqpeyou@pieyou 3 a
€97 681 1€820 'L o
AQ9 ¥LND
anysdwey
ybnoioquieq b
oD YoINYD VZ | ©
PY7 sejepossy Aojheg pieyoly ey 7 all
]
Wooxa3s
SNV1d 40074 A3S0d0¥dd w
sjiejaq uonesijddy Bujuue|d U
a1 Bumeiq
R R =
WAL
, T I+T
” @ @ 31NSN3 7 7 7
UOISUSIXT OpIS ABI0IS OM | W unsng 6\& -
eloid m oNIgsIHa j j:mzm
i ;
SYL7LND W u
anysdwen i ]
HONOYOaNYYA ” WooNa3g WOoOo¥a3g NoOYa3g Wooya3g
Ju89saI) 8yl 2§ W
wnipeg 74N I
a0 i U
|
i AT T e,
! Lo
t |
\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ |
| |
. N | |
00}:1 | |
NV1d 40014 ANNOYD 03SOd0dd ANV NY1d LIS W il
I N S S |
-——— 1= - | _
| |
paulejal ssea0e Bupsixg pauieje) ssaooe Bulisixg W 7
|
A
/ /
paulejel 881 Bunsixg / / <t
/ J/ 0
f /
| /s
‘ Ve
/ 7 .
y /o |- 001:4
A PN T NV1d 4004 d30Sd0dd
7 ‘Hodes yoajgIy y \
~ 7 Jad se ‘eale =o_tm~o_n\ \
v 1001 UM Buipuels EE/ / G198 !
/ Jo eale apiroid o} uopnjos Bupsid
/ Buysauibus Bip-ou gap|[eD /um:_sm_ sl éw ~— ) — ) —
\\ Tem anip meN ~ =7 T~ T T T i e
|
| e ALIILA \\ ”
\ - —— . 4
| ~ .
| P AN g |
| e — N s j —_—— \\ ”
| - \ 06.¢ 39NN0T Y I
|
| I I
" popuapo uied Bupsiea 7 | D |
I e ey e e W (Kwejo Joy ”
T N 0. B ! ‘, W ﬁ ” umous ”
N3HOLI 0| Jou yorey
azanaal__ 9¢ ON | J001) ”
5 ovey | 3ovyous |
5 ! 1401 !
< | |
E NOILd3034 ,ﬁ \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ = == |
\< = =7 I
3 ooy = || i |
< INOOY ¥3XOONS 39NNOT ONILINSNOD L | !
 N— I —
I == — | ]
= . g il ! m m
JOVHVO MIN f B AN I I I
] el il ! W W
[l v = oo P n 1 T ———JH
NN EEE A W W T
9% , — ﬂ ! |
! SNNNNRRNNAEN
AYOLYANISNOD | W
] |
Iy 7
T ooy il
I ¥AL1IHS N3O |
" |
9¢ 'ON i | iﬁ
|
f |
Il
|
o L ===




004:1

v €00/00¢3 00L:L
UoISIARY Joquiny Bumesq

woom woms NOILVAZ 13 LS¥3 03S0d0¥d NOILVA13 HLNOS 03S0d0¥d

NOISN3LX3 03S0d0Yd |

NOISN3LX3 d3S0d0dd

5oz ke 8ea

sneis

€97 681 1€820 'L
AQ9 ¥LND
anysdwey
ybnoioquieq
2RI YoINYD VZ I
Py sejeoossy AsiAeg pleyory Weby

woo AsjAeqpleyou@pieyou 3

SNOILVAIT3 @3S0d0O¥d B ONILSIXT
sjiejaq uonesijddy Bujuue|d
a1 Bumeiq

uoIsSuB)X3g apIS Aau0lg om |
ysloid

S o0v o
HONOYOINYV4 ' .
Emmmw_mwﬁﬂ NOILVYAT13 1S3IM d3S0d0Hd zo_._.<\m,mmm_m_ H1¥ON @3S0d0¥d
10 I NOISN3LX3 d3S0d0yd ﬁ NOISNILX3 a3S0d0Hd
1 1
|0 B
/ = = . == % = =
==y ==y
=ED = Eﬁmm HEW nn@jﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ez = B =
L1 e 9¢ 'ON 5
o0]
00}:1 00}:1
NOILVAIT3 1SV3 ONILSIX3 NOILVYAIT3 HLNOS 9NILSIX3
—— 1
g I
W —1 [ I —
[ G =
N [ [
0011 0011
NOILYATT3 LSIM ONILSIXT NOILVAIT3 HLHON ONILSIX3
i ] | g B @ m |
] g | S
T I ey M L :
. ) o
g
4
(&)
o




Development Management Committee Item 13
22nd June 2016 Report No.PLN1620
Section C

The information, recommendations and advice contained in this report are correct as at the
date of preparation, which is more than two weeks in advance of the Committee meeting.
Because of these time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the
final date given for consultee responses or neighbour comment. Any changes or necessary
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

Case Officer Tara Cowell

Application No. 16/00456/RBC3PP

Date Valid 9th June 2016

Expiry date of 30th June 2016

consultations

Proposal Display of four, free standing board signs

Address Queens Gate Roundabout Queens Gate Road Farnborough
Hampshire

Ward St Mark's

Applicant Rushmoor Borough Council

Agent Ms L Thornett

Recommendation Grant subject to expiry of consultation period

Description

The roundabout is located within the new Queens Gate development at the junction of
Queens Gate Road, ETPS Road and Cottesmore Place. Planning permission 02/00685/FUL
was granted for the construction of the Southern Access Road in 2003 and the roundabout
was built in 2008.

This proposal is for the display of four ‘Rushmoor in Bloom’ sponsored signs beneath each of
the free-standing roundabout name boards around the perimeter of the roundabout. Each
sign will have the Rushmoor in Bloom logo on a blue background with white lettering, a white
and yellow flower and the sponsor’'s name and logo, which is not yet known.

Each proposed sign would be 1 metre wide x 400mm high x 40mm wide supported on 2
posts measuring 800mm. The overall height of the signage including the street name sign is
1.2 metres from ground level.

Consultee Responses

Transportation Strategy Officer No comments

Neighbours notified

Pack Page 93
86



In addition to posting two site notices at the junctions of ETPS Road and Cottesmore Place
and a press advertisement, 35 individual letters of notification were sent to properties close
to the site. To date no responses have been received.

Neighbour comments
No comments received at the time of writing the report
Policy and determining issues

Core Strategy Policy CP1(sustainable development principles) is of relevance to the
consideration of this application.

Commentary

The main determining issues are the impact on the visual appearance of the area and on
highway safety.

The roundabout is 31.5 metres wide and is a flat-grassed area. On the roundabout are 8
flagpoles advertising the development of Queens Gate as well as some street furniture. The
proposed signs will be located opposite each of the entry points to the roundabout and will
advertising Rushmoor in Bloom and its sponsor. Being sited beneath the roundabout name
boards, the signs would blend in with the surroundings and are considered to have no
adverse impact.

Full Recommendation

It is recommended that subject to no new or substantial objections being received before the
expiry of the consultation period on 1% July 2016, the Head of Planning in consultation with
the Chairman be authorised to GRANT advertisement consent subject to the following
conditions and informatives:

THE STANDARD CONDITIONS

Conditions attaching to all consents granted or deemed to be granted for the display of
advertisements:-

1. No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site or
any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission.

2. No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to -
(a) endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or
aerodrome (civil or military);
(b)  obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or
aid to navigation by water or air; or
(c) hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or
surveillance or for measuring the speed of any vehicle.

3. Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of advertisements,
shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site.

4. Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying
advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not endanger the public.

Pack Page 94
87



Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed, the site
shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual amenity

Additional conditions

The permission hereby granted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved drawings - Plan 01 and Plan 02

Reason - To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission granted

Informatives

INFORMATIVE - The Local Planning Authority’'s commitment to working with the
applicants in a positive and proactive way is demonstrated by its offer of pre-
application discussion to all, free of charge, and assistance in the validation and
determination of applications through the provision of clear guidance regarding
necessary supporting information or amendments both before and after submission, in
line with the National Planning Policy Framework.

INFORMATIVE - REASONS FOR APPROVAL - The Council has granted permission
because the proposal is considered to have no adverse visual impact on the
appearance of the street scene or highway safety and has no significant material or
harmful impact on neighbours. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable
having regard to policy CP1 of the Rushmoor Core Strategy. It is therefore considered
that subject to compliance with the attached conditions, and taking into account all
other material planning considerations, including the provisions of the development
plan, the proposal would be acceptable. This also includes a consideration of whether
the decision to grant permission is compatible with the Human Rights Act 1998.

Pack Page 95
88






Contracts GM Map Page

aaaaaaaaaa



40mm

Ref: Plan 02

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

QUEENS GATE
ROUNDABOUT

KVQ,’IMOOV supported by

400mm

400mm

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

666MmMm

1000mMm

400mm

Pack Page 98
91


tara.cowell
Plan 02


Section D

The following applications are reported for INFORMATION purposes only. They relate to
applications, prior approvals, notifications, and consultations that have already been
determined by the Head of Planning and where necessary, in consultation with the
Chairman, in accordance with the Council’s adopted Scheme of Delegation.

If Members wish to have more details about the decision on any of the applications on
this list please contact David Stevens (01252 398738) or John W Thorne (01252 398791)
in advance of the Committee meeting.

Application No 16/00029/COND Ward: St John's
Applicant: Rio Homes And Estates Limited
Decision: Conditions details approved

Decision Date: 18 May 2016

Proposal: Submission of details to comply with conditions 3 (external materials), 4
(surfacing materials), 5 (levels) 6 (boundary treatment), 8 (construction
method statement) and 9 (landscaping) attached to planning permission
14/00409/FULPP allowed on appeal dated 13 October 2015 as amended
by appeal decision dated 11 February 2016 in respect of the demolition
of 113, 115 and 117 Fleet Road and erection of 12 dwellings (10 three
bedroom and 2 four bedroom) with associated landscaping, access and

parking
Address 113 - 121 Fleet Road Farnborough Hampshire
Application No 16/00031/CONDPP Ward: Wellington
Applicant: SeeAbility
Decision: Conditions details approved

Decision Date: 20 May 2016

Proposal: Submission of details to comply with conditions 2 (external materials), 11
(SUDS strategy), 12 (BREEAM), 14 (construction method statement) and
20 (facing brick) attached to planning permission 15/00097/FUL dated 2
April 2015 in respect of the demolition of existing community centre and
erection of a 12 bed residential care and congregate living
accommodation with associated car parking, bin and cycle storage and
access from Victoria Road

Address 207 - 211 High Street Aldershot Hampshire GU11 1TS

Pack Page 99
92



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00082/COU Ward: Manor Park

Mr & Mrs John And Bernadette Boon
Permission Granted

03 June 2016

Change of use from a dental surgery to two two-bedroom flats

133A Victoria Road Aldershot Hampshire GU11 1JW

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00119/COND Ward: Rowhill

Mr S Tracey
Conditions details approved

17 May 2016

Submission of details to comply with condition 2 (external materials
including rainwater goods and ironwork), 3 (damp survey), 5 (boundary
treatment) and 6 (obscure glazing) attached to planning permission
14/00474/FUL, dated 23 September 2014 for the erection of a two storey
rear extension including dormer windows in the roof with associated
alterations, demolition of existing garage and erection of a new garage.

Marlborough House Winton Road Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3DH

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Pack Page 100

16/00181/FULPP Ward: Empress

Mr Mark Wright
Permission Granted

25 May 2016

Change of use from Use Class B1 and B8 to MoT testing station with
ancillary vehicle repairs

24A Invincible Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7QU

93



Application No 16/00189/MMA Ward: Manor Park

Applicant: Mr S Sandhu
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 27 May 2016

Proposal: Minor Material Amendment to Planning Approval 15/00322/FULPP to
allow amendment to the design of the roof of the garage, amendments to
the finished floor level of the garage and the height of the forecourt
parking spaces and the retention of the porch added to the dwellinghouse

Address 4 Samson Close Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3FR
Application No 16/00194/REVPP Ward: Empress
Applicant: Fishron Farnborough Limited

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 31 May 2016

Proposal: Removal of Condition No.13 (sustainability rating certification) imposed
by planning permission 13/00306/FULPP dated 16 October 2013

Address Development Site At 27 And Adjacent Land Victoria Road
Farnborough Hampshire

Application No 16/00198/CONDPP Ward: St Mark's
Applicant: Millstone Homes
Decision: Conditions details approved

Decision Date: 17 May 2016

Proposal: Submission of details to comply with conditions 2 (external materials), 3
(surfacing materials), 4 (levels), 5 (boundary treatment), 8 (construction
method statement), 9 (landscaping), 12 (closure of existing access), 14
(SUDS), 15 (energy performance), 17 (allocation of parking spaces) and
19 (safeguarding of access onto Queens Road) attached to planning
permission 15/00606/FULPP for the demolition of existing buildings and
erection of 8 three bedroom houses and 5 two bedroom apartments with
associated car parking and formation of new vehicular access onto
Queens Road.

Address 31 To 33 Queens Road And 62 Peabody Road Farnborough
Hampshire

Pack Page 101
94



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00219/COND Ward: Empress

Bride Hall Holdings
Conditions details approved

23 May 2016

Submission of details to comply with condtion 16 (insulation of plant and
machinery for Premier Inn and Beefeater restaurant) pursuant to planning
permission 13/00024/FULPP dated 25 October 2013 in respect of the
demolition and redevelopment of properties at 1-5 Firgrove Parade to
provide 14 residential units (use class C3) with 490 sgm of ground floor
retail space (use classes A1-A3) and development of an 80 bed hotel
(use class C1) with 726 sgm ground floor restaurant/bar (use class
A3/A4) with associated car parking and landscaping works

1 -5 Firgrove Parade Farnborough Hampshire

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00221/FULPP Ward: St Mark's

Shell UK Retail
Permission Granted

26 May 2016

Erection of new side extension to existing sales building

22 Farnborough Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6AY

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00228/COND Ward: St Mark's

Mr Rodney Raggett
Conditions details approved

16 May 2016

Approval of matters reserved by condition 6 (boundary treatments) of
planning permission 15/00339/FULLPP dated 24 August 2015 to allow an
amened bourdary treatment scheme

Land Adjacent To 37 To 41 Cross Street And To The Rear Of 59 - 61
Southampton Street Farnborough Hampshire

Pack Page 102

95



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00233/TPO Ward: West Heath

Haig Homes
Permission Granted

17 May 2016

Three Birch trees (part of group G2 of TPO 142) crown reduce by 2
metres and thin by 15%, one Oak (T1 of TPO 229) sever ivy and clear
500 mm gap, one Oak (T28 of TPO 219) trim to clear overhead cables by
2 metres, two Birches (part of group G1 of TPO 142) crown thin by 15%,
one Oak (T27 of TPO 219) trim to clear overhead cables and building by
1 metre

Land Affected By TPOs 142 219 And 229 At Romayne Close And
Douglas Place Farnborough Hampshire

16/00246/COU Ward: Manor Park

Mr Marcin Wiejaczka
Permission Granted

18 May 2016

Change of use of part of first floor office to tattoo parlour

4 Heathland Street Aldershot Hampshire GU11 1NS

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:
Proposal:

Address

16/00247/FULPP Ward: North Town

Mr Graham Fitzgerald
Permission Granted

24 May 2016

Erection of infill extension with roller shutter door

Unit 3 North Town Trading Estate North Lane Aldershot Hampshire
GU12 4UB

16/00249/ADVPP Ward: Empress

Whitbread Plc
Permission Granted

19 May 2016

Display an externally illuminated double sided display unit

1 Kingsmead Farnborough Hampshire

Pack Page 103
96



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00250/NMAPP Ward: Knellwood

Mr Phil Davey
Permission Granted

09 June 2016

NON-MATERIAL AMENDMENT : Amendments to development approved
with planning permission 15/00793/FUL dated 1 December 2015 to add
porches to front elevation and re-location of bin and cycle storage to rear
gardens

Land To The Rear Of 141 - 143 Alexandra Road Farnborough
Hampshire

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00253/FULPP Ward: St Mark's

Mr Mohammad Raja
Permission Granted

03 June 2016

Demolish existing garage and erection of a part single part two storey
side/rear extension to include a one bedroom granny annexe, a rear
dormer window to facilitate the conversion of the roof space into
additional bedroom accommodation and increase height of roof/chimney

18 York Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6NF

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00256/TPOPP Ward: Fernhill

Mrs Tracy Yates
Permission Granted

27 May 2016

One Oak (T12 of TPO 357A) a crown lift of no more than 2 metres and a
lower canopy reduction of no more than 2 metres to the aspect of 20
Blackstone Close and removal of lower branch stubs

28 The Potteries Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9JR

Pack Page 104

97



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00259/COND Ward: Empress
Bride Hall Holdings

Conditions details approved

23 May 2016

Submission of details to comply with condition 18 (odour abatement)
attached to planning permission 13/00024/FULPP dated 25 October 2013
in respect of the demolition and redevelopment of properties at 1-5
Firgrove Parade to provide 14 residential units (use class C3) with 490
sgm of ground floor retail space (use classes A1-A3) and development of
an 80 bed hotel (use class C1) with 726 sqm ground floor restaurant/bar
(use class A3/A4) with associated car parking and landscaping works

1 -5 Firgrove Parade Farnborough Hampshire

16/00268/TPO Ward: West Heath

Mr Chris Foster
Permission Granted

03 June 2016
One Oak (T2 of TPO 282) crown lift to 6 metres from ground level

42 Newfield Avenue Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9PL

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00269/REVPP Ward: Fernhill

Gracewell Healthcare
Permission Granted

09 June 2016

Removal of Condition No.13 (sustainability rating certification) imposed
by planning permission 13/00343/FULPP dated 9 August 2013

Proposed Redevelopment At Abercorn House Randell House And
Hamilton Court Fernhill Road Blackwater Camberley Hampshire

Pack Page 105
98



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00273/FULPP Ward: Rowhill

Mr Andrey Romanovitch
Permission Granted

19 May 2016

Replace existing dormer window at rear with new larger domer window
and Juliet balcony

37 Cargate Avenue Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3EW

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00276/FULPP Ward: Cherrywood

The Sixth Form College
Permission Granted

27 May 2016

Erection of detached single-storey soundproofed recording studio
building with associated wheelchair access ramp

The Sixth Form College Prospect Avenue Farnborough Hampshire
GU14 8JX

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00279/FUL Ward: Aldershot Park

Mr Patrick Blake
Permission Granted

18 May 2016

Demolition of 4 garages followed by the erection of 4 replacement
garages

Garages M To P Alfonso Close Aldershot Hampshire

Pack Page 106

99



Application No 16/00281/TPOPP Ward: Fernhill

Applicant: Miss Marie Forkan
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 06 June 2016

Proposal: One Oak (at 38 The Potteries, Farnborough) and three Oak trees (201
Sandy Lane, Farnborough) part of groups G6 and G7 of TPO 357A,
remove deadwood, reduce height and sides by no more than 3 metres,
cutting back to growth points and crown lift to no more than 5 metres.
One Lime (at 39 The Potteries) T10 of TPO 357A crown lift to no more
than 4 metres’]

Address Land Affected By TPO 357A 38-39 The Potteries And 201 Sandy Lane
Farnborough Hampshire

Application No 16/00282/FULPP Ward: Fernhill
Applicant: Mr Robert Kormos
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 17 May 2016

Proposal: Demolition of existing garage and erection of fencing and new outbuilding
to rear

Address 111 Pinewood Park Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9LE

Application No 16/00284/TPO Ward: St John's

Applicant: Mrs Sarah Tucker

Decision: Permission Refused

Decision Date: 07 June 2016

Proposal: One Oak tree (Part of TPO 358A group G21) in rear garden of 2 The
Birches, Farnborough, fell and replace with another Oak tree

Address 2 The Birches Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9RP

Pack Page 107
100



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00286/REVPP Ward: Wellington

Seeability
Permission Granted

09 June 2016

Variation to conditions 2 and 17 attached to planning permission
15/00097/FUL dated 2 April 2015 in respect of the demolition of existing
community centre and erection of a 12 bed residential care and
congregate living accommodation with associated car parking, bin and
cycle storage and access from Victoria Road to allow for the use of
different external materials and a different foundation design in proximity
to Norway Maple and associated tree works [

207 - 211 High Street Aldershot Hampshire GU11 1TS

16/00290/FULPP Ward: North Town

YBC Cleaning Services Ltd
Permission Granted

03 June 2016

Change of use of existing ground floor flat to office to increase the size of
the existing office, including retention of storage space and redesign of
car parking layout and garden space to provide the required number of
car parking spaces on site with reference to planning permission
12/00908/COUPP dated 8 February 2013 as amended by parking layout
approved by planning permission 15/00765/REVPP dated 2 December
2015

161 North Lane Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4TA

16/00296/SCREEN Ward: Wellington

Grainger Plc
Environmental Assessment Not Required

07 June 2016

EIA SCREENING OPINION: Minor infrastructure works including
additional earthwork embankments relating to the provision of approved
Government Road highway works, including replacement canal bridge
(Aldershot Urban Extension).

Land Including Canal Bridge At Government Road Aldershot
Hampshire

Pack Page 108

101



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00300/FULPP Ward: St John's

PCC of St. John the Baptist, Cove PCC of
Permission Granted

23 May 2016

Erection of a single storey side extension to provide a new narthex

Parish Church Of St John The Baptist St Johns Road Farnborough
Hampshire

16/00301/FULPP Ward: Rownhill

Mr Adam Jeremy
Permission Granted

01 June 2016

Erection of a front porch

151 Alexandra Road Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3PP

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00303/REVPP Ward: St Mark's

Mr & Mrs J Nasmith
Permission Granted

17 May 2016

Variation of condition13 attached to planning application RSH01372/3
dated 31 January 1984 (erection of 26 houses) to allow the conversion of
the existing garage to a habitable room! !

16 Hermitage Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6UQ

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00309/PDC Ward: Empress

Art Stuart
Development is Lawful

18 May 2016

Certificate of Lawfulness for Proposed Development: Erection of 2 single
storey rear extensions

57 EIm Grove Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7RD

Pack Page 109
102



Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00311/CONDPP Ward: St John's

Whitman Builders
Conditions details approved

02 June 2016

Submission of details pursuant to Condition Nos.8 (SUDs drainage
details), 10 (levels), 13 (operatives parking and turning during
construction period) and 14 (landscaping scheme details) of planning
permission 15/00969/FULPP dated 10 February 2016

Garages Cripley Road Farnborough Hampshire

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00313/REV Ward: Cove And Southwood

Mr Antony Harbor
Permission Granted

27 May 2016

Relief of condition 19 of planning permission RSH03980 dated 3rd May
1984 (Construction of 48 Houses and 29 garages with access roads and
hardstandings) for the erection of a two storey rear extension, conversion
of garage to habitable room, enlarge the front bay window and install a
wood burning stove

3 Gleneagles Drive Farnborough Hampshire GU14 OPH

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00314/FULPP Ward: St John's

Ms P Gomez
Permission Granted

18 May 2016

Erection of a single storey rear extension following removal of existing
rear lean-to extension

12 Howard Drive Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9TQ

Pack Page 110

103



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00315/REXPD Ward: Fernhill
Mr Duncan Cree

Prior approval is NOT required

17 May 2016

Erection of single storey rear extension measuring 4 metres from the
original dwelling house, 2.3 metres to the eaves and 3.7 metres in overall
height

14 Cambrian Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9JF

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00317/FUL Ward: Cove And Southwood

Mr Paul Williams
Permission Granted

19 May 2016

Erection of two storey side and rear extension

41 Larch Way Farnborough Hampshire GU14 OQN

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00319/FULPP Ward: St John's

Mr E Bain
Permission Granted

25 May 2016

Erection of a single storey rear extension

26 Woodlands Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9QJ

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00322/FULPP Ward: St John's

Mr MIKE FIELD
Permission Granted

09 June 2016

Erection of single storey front extensions and conservatory to rear

53 Whetstone Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9SX

Pack Page 111
104



Application No 16/00325/FULPP Ward: Fernhill

Applicant: Mr Bernard Watsulu
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 20 May 2016

Proposal: Erection of a single storey side extension and partial conversion of
existing detached garage (revised scheme to planning
application15/00743/FULPP dated 20 October 2015)

Address 18 Sidlaws Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9JL
Application No 16/00327/ADVPP Ward: Knellwood
Applicant: Farnborough College Of Technology

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 02 June 2016

Proposal: Display a high level set of halo illuminated letters on front elevation of
University Centre building

Address Proposed University Centre Farnborough College Of Technology
Boundary Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6SB

Application No 16/00328/FULPP Ward: Knellwood
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Philp
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 19 May 2016

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension

Address 2 Corfe Way Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6TS
Application No 16/00329/FULPP Ward: St Mark's
Applicant: Mr Phil Belcher

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 19 May 2016

Proposal: Erection of a first floor rear extension

Address 50 High Street Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6HP

Pack Page 112
105



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00332/FUL Ward: Cove And Southwood

Ms Heidi Freeman
Permission Granted

20 May 2016

Relief of Condition 32 of Planning Application 96/00079/FUL dated
03.10.1996 to allow the erection of single storey rear extension

12 Heather Gardens Farnborough Hampshire GU14 ORU

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:
Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:
Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00333/FULPP Ward: North Town

Mr L Bookham
Permission Granted

20 May 2016

Erection of outbuilding to rear

37 Field Way Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4UJ

16/00337/FULPP Ward: Rowhill

Mr Keith Holyoake
Permission Granted

01 June 2016

Retention of 2.12 metre high fencing

158 Alexandra Road Aldershot Hampshire GU11 3PP

16/00342/FULPP Ward: Empress

Mr David Ley
Permission Granted

08 June 2016

Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of a single storey rear
extension

18 Pierrefondes Avenue Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8NF

Pack Page 113
106



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00346/PDC Ward: Cove And Southwood
Mr M Campbell And Ms C Ruby

Development is Lawful

25 May 2016

Certificate of Lawfulness for Proposed Development: Formation of a
dormer within rear roof slope and installation of three velux windows
within the front roof slope

2 Ambleside Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 0JY

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00347/PDCPP Ward: Knellwood

Mr D Foley
Development is Lawful

01 June 2016

Certificate of Lawfulness for Proposed Development Formation of a
dormer within rear roof elevation and two roof lights within front roof slope

30 Sycamore Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6PQ

16/00348/FULPP Ward: Knellwood

Mr D Foley
Permission Granted

01 June 2016

Demolition of existing extension and erection of a single storey rear
extension

30 Sycamore Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6PQ

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Pack Page 114

16/00349/FUL Ward: Fernhill

Mr Griffin
Permission Granted

03 June 2016

Erection of 2.4 metre high boundary fencing with sliding gate to front and
single storey rear extension

Briarwood 40 Sandy Lane Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9HJ

107



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00351/FULPP Ward: Knellwood

Mr Lewis Miller
Permission Granted

01 June 2016

Erection of outbuilding to rear

142 Farnborough Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 7JH

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00353/COND Ward: Knellwood

Mr Driss Naffati
Conditions details approved

06 June 2016

Submission of details pursuant to Condition Nos.4 (extraction system
details) and 7 (customer refuse bin) of planning permission
15/00958/COU dated 20 January 2016

70 Farnborough Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6TH

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00355/PRIOR Ward: Cherrywood

Camberley Group PLC
Prior Approval Required and Granted
27 May 2016

PRIOR APPROVAL : Demolition of building

Hawley Lane Methodist Church 68 Hawley Lane Farnborough
Hampshire GU14 8EH

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00359/FUL Ward: Cherrywood

Hawley Community Garden
Permission Granted

02 June 2016

Erection of one wooden shed, one metal storage shed (tool store), one
greenhouse and one composting toilet, to facilitate use of land as
community garden

Part Of Former Garage Site Prince Charles Crescent Farnborough
Hampshire

Pack Page 115
108



Application No 16/00361/REV Ward: St John's

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Garfoot
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 01 June 2016

Proposal: Relief of Condition 6 of planning permission 04/00010/Rem dated 2nd
April 2004 to allow the erection of single storey rear extension

Address 31 Maple Avenue Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9UR

Application No 16/00362/FUL Ward: St John's

Applicant: Mr C Couzens

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 01 June 2016

Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension

Address 16 Melrose Avenue Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9UL
Application No 16/00363/FUL Ward: North Town
Applicant: Mrs C Stephens

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 06 June 2016

Proposal: Erection of a single storey side and rear extension
Address 1 Calvert Close Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4QX
Application No 16/00364/FUL Ward: Knellwood
Applicant: Mr J Hargreaves

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 09 June 2016

Proposal: Erection of a single storey and first floor side extension and formation of
a dormer window to the rear

Address 21 Windsor Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6QZ

Pack Page 116
109



Application No

Applicant:
Decision:
Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00365/FUL Ward: Cove And Southwood

Mr Stuart Upton
Permission Granted

01 June 2016

Retention of single storey rear extension

50 Southwood Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 0JJ

Application No

Applicant:
Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

Application No

Applicant:

Decision:

Decision Date:

Proposal:

Address

16/00366/CONDPP Ward: St Mark's

HEREF Farnborough Ltd
Conditions details approved

09 June 2016

Submission of details pursuant to conditions 14 (odour) and 16
(emissions to air) attached to outline planning permission 99/00744/0OUT
dated 17 November 2000 in respect of a coffee shop with drive through
facility.

Land At Junction With Templer Avenue Meadow Gate Avenue
Farnborough Hampshire

16/00368/PRIORPP Ward: Empress

Farnborough Propco Lux S.a.r.l.
Prior Approval Required and Granted
03 June 2016

Prior approval under Schedule 2 Part 11 Class B of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development)(England) Order 2015
as amended for the demolition of the buildings known as Pyramid House,
PC World, Jolen House and Oaklands House.

Land At Solartron Road And Westmead Farnborough Hampshire

Pack Page 117
110



Application No 16/00371/FULPP Ward: Empress

Applicant: Mr Andrew Rose
Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 07 June 2016

Proposal: Erection of two storey rear extension

Address Woodridge 25 Pierrefondes Avenue Farnborough Hampshire GU14
8PA

Application No 16/00374/FULPP Ward: Fernhill

Applicant: Mr BRIAN DEAKIN

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 06 June 2016

Proposal: Erection of a single storey side extension within existing car port
Address 2 Henley Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 9HE

Application No 16/00376/REXPD Ward: Cove And Southwood
Applicant: Mr B Clark

Decision: Prior approval is NOT required

Decision Date: 03 June 2016

Proposal: Erection of rear extension measuring 3.66 metres from the rear of the
integral garage, 2.25 metres to the eaves and 3.54 metres in overall
height

Address 8 Langdale Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 OLQ

Pack Page 118
111



Application No 16/00380/SCREEN Ward: Empress

Applicant: Farnborough Propco Lux S.a.r.l.
Decision: Environmental Assessment Not Required

Decision Date: 23 May 2016

Proposal: SCREENING OPINION in respect of variation of condition numbers 2, 3,
4,5,9,12, 16, 17, 20, 24, 25, 26, 28, 32, 34, and removal of condition 15
pursuant to planning permission 14/00016/FULPP, dated 9 April 2014, for
the demolition of Pyramid House, Jolen House, Oaklands House and PC
World and erection of two retail/retail warehouse buildings with
mezzanine floors to be subdivided into up to five units, with new parking
area, access from Solartron Road, servicing access from Westmead and
site levelling and associated works to allow for small scale changes to the
external appearance and layout of the development and associated
changes to floor space and the submission of details of external/surfacing
materials, levels, boundary treatment, landscaping, cycle parking,
demolition and lighting strategies and documents/completion of works
post demolition or on occupation

Address Land At Solartron Road And Westmead Farnborough Hampshire
Application No 16/00381/FULPP Ward: Empress

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Wake

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 10 June 2016

Proposal: Erection of a conservatory to the side

Address 2 Ringwood Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8BG
Application No 16/00389/FUL Ward: Knellwood
Applicant: Mr B Rowlands

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 10 June 2016

Proposal: Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of part two and single
storey rear extension

Address 61 Fellows Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6NU

Pack Page 119
112



Application No 16/00392/REXPD Ward: West Heath

Applicant: Mr Mark Donne
Decision: Prior approval is NOT required

Decision Date: 10 June 2016

Proposal: Erection of rear conservatory measuring 5 metres in depth from the
original rear wall of the house ,2.4m to the eaves and 3.4m in overall
height[’

Address 8 Horn Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8RW

Application No 16/00399/NMA Ward: Cherrywood

Applicant: Mr S Jordan

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 19 May 2016

Proposal: Non material amendment to planning permission 16/00285/FUL dated
09th May 2016 to allow the re-positioning of the skylights

Address 19 Longfield Close Farnborough Hampshire GU14 8HQ
Application No 16/00400/PDC Ward: Manor Park
Applicant: Mr And Mrs M. Silver

Decision: Development is Lawful

Decision Date: 10 June 2016

Proposal: Certificate of Lawfulness for Proposed Development: Erection of a single
storey rear extension

Address 8 Church Hill Aldershot Hampshire GU12 4JS
Application No 16/00403/NMAPP Ward: Knellwood
Applicant: Mr P Davey

Decision: Permission Granted

Decision Date: 01 June 2016

Proposal: NON-MATERIAL AMENDMENT : Retention of amendments to
development approved by planning permission 15/00376/FULPP dated
20 August 2015 comprising the widening and alteration of existing roof
dormers on front and rear roof slopes!(’

Address 141 - 143 Alexandra Road Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6RR

Pack Page 120
113



Application No 16/00412/TPOPP Ward: St Mark's

Applicant: Mrs Symcox
Decision: Planning Permission not required

Decision Date: 23 May 2016

Proposal: Horse Chestnut (Tree 1) fell because it has dim suggestion of
replanting because there are currently others trees located in the garden
area.

Address 42 Southampton Street Farnborough Hampshire GU14 6BG

Pack Page 121
114



Agenda Iltem 6

Development Management Committee Directorate of Community
22nd June 2016 and Environment
Planning Report No. PLN1623

VARIATION OF LEGAL AGREEMENT RELATING TO FORMER TA CENTRE
REDAN ROAD ALDERSHOT

1. Introduction

This rectangular development site is located on the south side of Redan Road. The
purpose of this report is to consider a request to vary the terms of the 2015 legal
agreement relating to the timing of the payment of the financial contributions secured
by way of this agreement.

2. Background

In March 2015 planning permission, 14/00028/FULPP, was granted for the erection
of 4 two bedroom, 6 three bedroom and 4 four bedroom houses and a block of 8 two
bedroom flats with associated access and parking This permission was granted
subject to a section 106 legal agreement which included the following:

— a financial contribution of £142,041.00 towards mitigation at Southwood Il relating
to the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area

— a financial contribution of £41,800 towards the provision of open space;

— a financial contribution of £89,238.00 towards transport;

— a financial contribution of £12,610.20 towards monitoring and

— a clause relating to the future need for an updated economic viability assessment

The permission was observed to have been implemented in March 2015 and an
invoice was therefore issued in respect of the financial contributions which the
developer had committed to in signing the agreement. These are SPA mitigation,
open space and monitoring totalling £196,451.20.

3. Proposed amendment to the legal agreement
A request has been received on behalf of the applicant seeking a deed of variation to
the legal agreement to allow the timing of the payments payable to Rushmoor

Borough Council in two stages as follows:

- Payment 1 of £100,000 would be paid by the owner on the successful
completion of the sale of the first property

- Payment 2 of £96,451.20 would be paid by the owner on the successful
completion of the sale of the second property.

Pack Page 122
115



4. Planning considerations

Section 106A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relates to the modification
and discharge of planning obligations.

It states, inter alia, that a planning obligation may not be modified or discharged
except by agreement between the Local Planning Authority and the person(s)
against whom the obligation is enforceable. It further states that a person against a
person whom a planning obligation is enforceable may at any time after the expiry of
the relevant period apply to the Local Planning Authority for the obligation to have
effect subject to such modifications as may be specified in the application or to be
discharged. In this case the relevant period is 5 years beginning with the date on
which the obligation is entered into. This means that the planning obligation may
only be varied with the agreement of the Local Planning Authority.

The site has been allocated as a housing site since 2000 (“saved local plan policy
H2 refers). It has lain vacant for many years and has been the subject of complaint
concerning its untidy appearance. Whilst it is noted that sufficient works have taken
place to implement the permission, no further development has taken place.

The test to be applied in this case is whether the obligation continues to serve a
useful purpose. The obligation is considered to continue to serve a useful purpose
in that it enables the developer to mitigate the effect of additional residential
development on the features of interest within the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area, addresses the requirements of public open space generated by the
development and allows for monitoring. There is no indication of when construction
works will commence in earnest nor when the first houses will be ready for sale.
Given this, there is also a concern that the site will remain undeveloped for some
time with no contributions being secured. On this basis it is recommended that the
request to vary the legal agreement be refused.

5. Recommendation

The request to vary the existing 106 agreement with a deed of variation as outlined
above be REFUSED

Keith Holland
Head of Planning

Contact:
Sarita Jones — tel.no. 01252 398792 sarita.jones@rushmoor.gov.uk

Pack Page 123
116



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	DMC Agenda 22 June 2016
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Wednesday, 22nd June, 2016
	Agenda
	Index to Development Management Committee Agenda
	Minutes of Development Management Committee of 25th May 2016
	Appendix “A”
	Agenda Item 3 - Planning Application Introduction
	Future items for Committee and Petitions
	ASDA Westmead Farnborough - 16/00027/FUL
	The Potters Arms 182 Cove Road Farnborough - 16/00307/FULPP
	65 North Lane Aldershot - 16/00331/FULPP
	32 The Crescent Farnborough - 16/00208/FULPP
	Queens Gate Roundabout Queens Gate Road Farnborough - 16/00456/RBC3PP
	Section D - Applications already determined
	Variation of Legal Agreement Relating to former TA Centre Redan Road Aldershot





